
City Council Agenda 1 April 9, 2019

MISSION VIEJO AGENDA
City Council, Community Development Financing Authority,
Successor Agency of the Community Development Agency, 

Housing Authority, and Library Board of Trustees*
April 9, 2019, at 5:00 PM (Closed Session Business)

April 9, 2019, at 6:00 PM (General Business)

City Hall, 200 Civic Center, Mission Viejo, California, 92691       City Council Chamber

CALL TO ORDER—CITY COUNCIL, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FINANCING 
AUTHORITY, SUCCESSOR AGENCY OF THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY, 
HOUSING AUTHORITY, AND LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

*Note: All Board and Agency memberships are reflected in the title “Council Member.”

ROLL CALL: Council Member Bucknum
Council Member Kelley
Council Member Sachs
Mayor Pro Tem Goodell
Mayor Raths

CLOSED SESSION

CS1. Conference with legal Counsel: Anticipated Litigation Initiation of Litigation 
Pursuant to Paragraph 4 of Subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9 (1 case); and threat to 
Public Services or Facilities; Consultation with City Attorney and Related Experts.

REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION

INVOCATION: Council Member Sachs

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Pro Tem Goodell

PRESENTATIONS

P1. Recognize the Spring AYSO Region 84 Girls U10 Team "Impact" as the Western 
State Champions

Recommended Action:  Present certificates of recognition.

P2. Featured Businesses of the Month

Recommended Action:  Present proclamation to Adrien Diaz of Mary Kay Cosmetics.

P3. Road to the 2020 Census



City Council Agenda 2 April 9, 2019

Recommended Action:  Receive presentation from Partnership Specialist, Bao Nguyen of 
the U.S. Census Bureau.

NATIONAL ANTHEM:  Capistrano Valley High School Saxophone Quartet

PUBLIC COMMENTS

Please see the City Clerk to make your request to speak. When addressing the City Council, state 
your name for the official record. If presenting handout materials for the City Council, please provide 
six copies to the City Clerk before speaking. Your materials will become public record.

NON-AGENDA ITEMS: You may address the City Council on matters NOT listed on the agenda 
during “Public Comments.” You will be allotted up to three (3) minutes to speak on any item in the 
City’s subject matter jurisdiction that is not already scheduled for discussion. Under the Ralph M. 
Brown Act, the City Council cannot act on items raised during public comment but may respond 
briefly to statements made or questions posed, request clarification or refer the item to staff.

AGENDA ITEMS: If you wish to address the Council on an item that is listed on the agenda, please 
make your request to speak before the Mayor announces that agenda item. When the matter is being 
considered, you may address the City Council after being recognized by the Mayor or Mayor Pro 
Tem. You will be allotted up to three (3) minutes to speak, and your remarks should be limited to the 
discussion of that specific agenda item.

CONSENT CALENDAR

1. City Council Minutes

Recommended Action:  Approved the Minutes for the regular City Council meeting of 
March 26, 2019, as presented or as amended.

2. Check Register Dated March 15, 2019 in the Amount of $2,809,639.65

Recommended Action:  Ratify the accompanying check register.

3. Check Register Dated March 22, 2019 in the Amount of $318,479.76

Recommended Action:  Ratify the accompanying check register.

4. City Treasurer’s Monthly Report for February 2019

Recommended Action:  Receive and file.

5. Mission Viejo Community Development Financing Authority (MVCDFA) Treasurer’s 
Monthly Report for February 2019

Recommended Action:  Receive and file.

6. Successor Agency of the Community Development Agency Treasurer’s Monthly 



City Council Agenda 3 April 9, 2019

Report for February 2019

Recommended Action:  Receive and file.

7. Mission Viejo Housing Authority (MVHA) Treasurer’s Monthly Report for February 
2019

Recommended Action:  Receive and file.

8. Fiscal Year 2019/20 Senate Bill 1 Road Repair and Accountability Act

Recommended Action:  Adopt Resolution 19-XX Adopting a List of Projects for Fiscal 
Year 2019/20 Funded by Senate Bill 1: The Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017.

ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR

OLD BUSINESS

9. Saddleback Valley Unified School District Youth Services Contract 2019-2021

Recommended Action:  Approve the Saddleback Valley Unified School District Youth 
Services Contract for 2019-2021 and increase participant fee by $15 per school year and 
$10 per summer session as recommended by the Community Services Commission.

10. Capital Improvement Program Prioritization as Recommended by the Community 
Services Commission

Recommended Action:  Receive report from staff and file.

11. FY 2019-21 Revenue Projections

Recommended Action:  Receive and file report.

NEW BUSINESS

MAYOR’S, COMMISSION, COMMITTEE REPORTS AND ACTIONS

12. Orange County Fire Authority (OCFA) Report

Recommended Action:  Receive report.

13. Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG) Report

Recommended Action:  Receive report.

STAFF REPORTS

14. Analysis of Contract Law Enforcement Services Costs and Methodology for Contract 
Cities Report



City Council Agenda 4 April 9, 2019

Recommended Action:  Receive report.

COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS AND ACTIONS

15. Council Member Reports of Events and Activities Attended ~ AB1234

Recommended Action:  Receive reports.

Council Member Bucknum

Council Member Kelley

Council Member Sachs

Mayor Pro Tem Goodell

Mayor Raths



City Council Agenda 5 April 9, 2019

Adjournment to April 23, 2019, at 5:00 PM

At the hour of 9:30 p.m., the City Council will review the remaining agenda items and make a 
decision regarding the items to be considered before the 11:00 p.m. adjournment and the items to 
be continued to the next meeting.

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC

Supplemental material received after the posting of the Agenda

Any supplemental writings or documents distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item 
on this Agenda, after the posting of the Agenda, will be available for public review in the City Clerk’s 
Office located at 200 Civic Center, Mission Viejo, California, during normal business hours.  In addition, 
such writings or documents will be made available on the City’s web site at http://cityofmissionviejo.org/ 
and will be available for public review at the respective meeting.
 
If you have any questions regarding any item of business on the Agenda for this meeting, please contact 
City Clerk’s Office staff at (949) 470-3052 or by email – cityclerk@cityofmissionviejo.org.

Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Accommodations

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, if you require a disability related 
modification or accommodation to attend or participate in this meeting, including auxiliary aids or 
services, please call the City Clerk’s office at (949) 470-3052 (voice) or the California Relay Service at 
least 48 hours prior to the meeting.  If you have special accessibility needs, please notify the City Clerk’s 
office as soon as possible before the meeting so that reasonable arrangements for accessibility can be 
made.



 

City Council Minutes          1                     March 26, 2019 

 

MISSION VIEJO MINUTES 
City Council, Community Development Financing Authority, 

Successor Agency of the Community Development Agency, 

Housing Authority, and Library Board of Trustees* 
 

March 26, 2019 

 
 

A Regular Meeting of the City Council, the Community Development Financing Authority, the 

Successor Agency of the Community Development Agency, the Housing Authority, and the 

Library Board of Trustees of the City of Mission Viejo, California, was called to order by Mayor 

Raths at 5:02 p.m., on March 26, 2019, at 200 Civic Center, Mission Viejo, California.  

A complete copy of the agenda for the meeting containing all items as shown herein was posted 

by 5:00 p.m. on March 21, 2019, on the outdoor bulletin board at City Hall. Copies were also 

posted at Montanoso Recreation and Fitness Center, 25800 Montanoso Drive, and Norman P. 

Murray Community and Senior Center, 24932 Veterans Way. 

*All Board and Agency memberships are reflected in the title "Council Member." 

Present:  Council Member Bucknum  

Council Member Kelley  

Council Member Sachs 

Mayor Pro Tem Goodell  

Mayor Raths   
Absent:  None 

   

Staff Present:  Dennis Wilberg, City Manager 

William P. Curley III, City Attorney   

Keith Rattay, Assistant City Manager/Director of Public Services 

Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services 

Karen Hamman, City Clerk   

 

CLOSED SESSION 

 

CS1. Labor Negotiations - The Council Will Provide Direction to its Labor Negotiator 

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957 and 54957.6.  The Parties to the 

Negotiations Are the City and City’s Unrepresented Employees.  The City’s 

Negotiator is Dennis Wilberg. 

 
RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION AND RECONVENE 

 

At the hour of 5:03 p.m., Mayor Raths recessed the meeting to Closed Session. The City Council 

reconvened at 6:01 p.m. with all five City Council Members present. 

 

  

Page 1 of 7Item# 1.



 

City Council Minutes          2                     March 26, 2019 

REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION 

 

City Attorney Bill Curley announced that the Council received information on personnel matters 

and gave direction to staff, but no reportable action occurred. 

 

INVOCATION: Mayor Raths 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Council Member Bucknum 

 

PRESENTATIONS 

 

P1. Presentation of Checks for School Safety Improvements to Capistrano Unified and 

Saddleback Valley Unified School Districts 

 

 
Mayor Raths presented checks to Capistrano Unified School District Board Member Judy 

Bullockus and Saddleback Valley Unified School District Superintendent Dr. Crystal 

Turner and Trustee Amanda Morrell. 

 

*Item P4 was taken out of order. 

 

P4. Featured Businesses of the Month 

 

 Mayor Raths presented proclamations to Michael Alarcon, Greta Windisch and Josh 

Vecchione of Fairhaven Memorial Services; and Edward Moon D.D.S. and his wife, Jennifer. 

 

P2. Vector Control Board Presentation 

 

 
Vector Control Board Member Bob Ruesch introduced District Manager Rick Howard who 

presented information on invasive Aedes mosquitos in Orange County and potential 

impacts to residents.  

 

P3. 2-1-1 Orange County Presentation 

 
 Karen Williams, President & CEO of 2-1-1 Orange County, made the presentation. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 

Neil A. M.V.: discussed the services and support provided by Alcoholics Anonymous (AA) and 

he noted that there are many options for AA meetings in Mission Viejo. 

 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

 

Items 7 and 11 were removed from the Consent Calendar for separate consideration. 

 

Motion made by Council Member Bucknum, seconded by Council Member Kelley, to approve the 

Consent Calendar as outlined below. 

  

On roll call, said motion carried by the following vote: 

 

Page 2 of 7Item# 1.

https://missionviejo.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=2007&meta_id=172795


 

City Council Minutes          3                     March 26, 2019 

AYES: Bucknum, Goodell, Kelley, Raths and Sachs 

NOES: None 

ABSENT: None 

   

1. City Council Minutes 

 

 Approved the Minutes for the regular City Council meeting of March 12, 2019, as 

presented. 

 

2. Check Register Dated March 1, 2019 in the Amount of $769,749.86 

 
 Ratified the accompanying check register. 

 

3. Check Register Dated March 8, 2019 in the Amount of $594,150.98 

 
 Ratified the accompanying check register. 

 

4. General Plan Progress Report for 2018 

 
 Received and filed report. 

 

5. Annual Routine Park, Right-of-Way, and Facility Lighting Maintenance and 

Electrical Repair 

 

 (1) Approved Seventh Amendment to the existing contract with C&D Electric, Inc. for the 

subject services; and (2) issued a change order in an amount not to exceed $30,000.00. 

 

6. 2018 Residential Resurfacing—Slurry Seal (CIP 19838)—Notice of Completion 

 

 

(1) Certified the completion of and accepted the improvements for the subject project; (2) 

authorized the City Manager to sign the Notice of Completion; (3) authorized the City 

Clerk to record the Notice of Completion with the County of Orange and to release the 

faithful performance and payment bonds one year and 35 days, respectively, after the date 

of recordation of the Notice of Completion contingent upon no claims or liens being filed 

with the City; and (4) authorized payment of the final retention 35 days after the date of 

recordation of the Notice of Completion. 

 

8. Marguerite Parkway Corridor Traffic Signal Synchronization (CIP 17230) 

 

 

(1) Certified the completion of and accepted the improvements for the subject project; (2) 

authorized the City Manager to sign the Notice of Completion; (3) authorized the City 

Clerk to record the Notice of Completion with the County of Orange and to release the 

faithful performance and payment bonds one year and 35 days, respectively, after the date 

of recordation of the Notice of Completion contingent upon no claims or liens being filed 

with the City; and (4) authorized payment of the final retention 35 days after the date of 

recordation of the Notice of Completion. 

 

9. First Amendment to Agreement with Matrix Imaging for Document Scanning 

Services 

Page 3 of 7Item# 1.



 

City Council Minutes          4                     March 26, 2019 

 Approved First Amendment to Agreement with Matrix Imaging for an additional $20,000 

resulting in a total not-to-exceed amount of $50,000 for Document Scanning Services. 

 

10. Los Alisos Boulevard & Santa Margarita Parkway Intersection Improvements (CIP 

18238) 

 

 
Approved the bid specifications, subject to minor revisions required by the City Engineer, 

and authorized staff to advertise for bids for the Los Alisos Boulevard and Santa Margarita 

Parkway (CIP 18238) Intersection Improvement Project. 

 

ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR 

 

11. La Paz Bridge and Road Widening (CIP 756/761) 

 

 

Director of Public Works Mark Chagnon presented the staff report and answered the 

Council Members’ questions. 

Motion made by Council Member Bucknum, seconded by Council Member Kelley, to 

authorize the Director of Public Works to submit a request to the Orange County 

Transportation Authority to extend the expenditure deadline for Measure M2 grant funds 

in the amount of $3,300,843 to Fiscal Year 2019/2020 for the La Paz Bridge and Road 

Widening. 

  

On roll call, said motion carried by the following vote: 

 

AYES: Bucknum, Goodell, Kelley, Raths and Sachs 

NOES: None 

ABSENT: None 
 

   

7. Annual Routine Tree Trimming – West Coast Arborists, Inc. 

 

 

Assistant City Manager/Director of Public Services Keith Rattay presented the report and 

responded to the Council Members’ questions. 

Pat Mahoney, Owner of West Coast Arborists: answered questions about staffing during 

storm activity. He noted that his employees are put up in hotels during significant storms 

so that they are in town and able to respond to calls for service right away. 

Motion made by Council Member Kelley, seconded by Council Member Bucknum, to (1) 

approve Twenty-Fifth Amendment to the existing contract with West Coast Arborists, Inc. 

for the subject services; and (2) issue a change order in an amount not to exceed 

$90,000.00. 

  

On roll call, said motion carried by the following vote: 

 

AYES: Bucknum, Goodell, Kelley, Raths and Sachs 

NOES: None 

ABSENT: None 
 

   

Page 4 of 7Item# 1.



 

City Council Minutes          5                     March 26, 2019 

OLD BUSINESS 

 

12. Routine Bidding of Maintenance Contracts - Updated Information 

 

 

Assistant City Manager/Director of Public Services Keith Rattay presented the staff report. 

Motion made by Council Member Kelley, seconded by Council Member Bucknum, to 

accept the Group 1 and Group 2 increases that were offered prior to the bidding process 

commencing (as outlined in the staff report). 

  

On roll call, said motion carried by the following vote:  

 

AYES: Bucknum, Goodell, Kelley, Raths and Sachs 

NOES: None 

ABSENT: None 
 

  

MAYOR’S, COMMISSION, COMMITTEE REPORTS AND ACTIONS 

 

13. Transportation Corridor Agency Report 

 
 Council Member Kelley presented the report. 

 

14. Orange County Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) Report 

 
 Council Member Bucknum presented the report. 

 

STAFF REPORTS 

 

15. Community Opinion Survey 

 

 Timothy McLarney, President of True North Research, presented results from the 2019 

Community Opinion Survey. 

 

16. Mission Viejo Shuttle 

 

 
Director of Public Works Mark Chagnon presented the report and noted that Orange 

County Transportation Authority (OCTA) has agreed to consider a written proposal from 

the City regarding changes to service in order to improve shuttle productivity. 

 

COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS AND ACTIONS 

 

17. Council Member Reports of Events and Activities Attended ~ AB1234 

 

 
By consensus, the City Council Members acknowledged their event and activities 

calendars as presented in the report and agreed to provide any changes to the City Clerk 

for the public record. 

 

  

Page 5 of 7Item# 1.



 

City Council Minutes          6                     March 26, 2019 

Council Member Bucknum 

 

Council Member Bucknum thanked Investment Advisory Commissioner and resident, Nina 

Altountash, for organizing the Nowruz celebration display at the Community Center. She asked 

staff if the display can be kept up through the weekend next year. Council Member Bucknum also 

discussed her attendance at the Persian celebration of spring at Barber Park in Irvine and the 

Mission Viejo Comic-Con event at the Library. She said that this year’s event was even more 

popular than last year’s and she expressed her thanks to Library Director Genesis Hansen and her 

staff. Council Member Bucknum outlined her recent legislative advocacy trip to Sacramento with 

the Association of California Cities-Orange County and Orange County Business Council. She 

said Sacramento is not interested in cities having local control and that legislators feel they can do 

a better job of mandating what happens. She outlined various pending bills and expressed concern 

with them, especially those dealing with housing. Council Member Bucknum thanked Council 

Member Sachs for forming Secure OC Schools and noted that the checks presented to the school 

districts earlier in the evening were part of the Safe Schools Challenge, a program that Council 

Member Sachs helped to start. She said she looks forward to seeing Secure OC Schools continue 

for the benefit of the schools and public safety. 

 

Council Member Kelley 

 

Council Member Kelley discussed her attendance at two Orange County Mayors prayer breakfasts 

and the Mission Viejo Activities Committee St. Patrick's Day Irish Fest. She shared that she really 

enjoyed serving as Principal for a Day at La Paz Intermediate School and she noted that Jean 

Walker is an excellent Principal. Council Member Kelley announced that she was pleased to meet 

the school’s teacher of the year, Jonathan Vantassell, who also won District Teacher of the Year 

and is up for the state title next. She thanked the school for doing an excellent job of promoting 

the City’s character program and further announced that the student members of the City’s 

Character Committee will be hosting a teen mentoring program for 8th graders to learn about some 

of the challenges they may be encountering in high school. The workshop will be held on April 

10, 2019, at 3:30 p.m. at the Norman P. Murray Community Center and Council Member Kelley 

encouraged those with 8th graders to look into the free program.  

 

Council Member Sachs 

 

Council Member Sachs announced that he has been watching recent developments with the utility 

companies and he’s seeing that more and more, they’re moving away from accepting responsibility 

for the wildfires, many of which were caused by downed utility poles. He noted that he has never 

been a big proponent of CCA (Community Choice Aggregate) because of the costs involved but 

recently, some South County cities have begun to seriously look at options and he feels that 

Mission Viejo should have curiosity about the impact of these utility issues too. Council Member 

Sachs asked the City Manager to appoint a staff member to evaluate opportunities that may be 

available with other local cities and to gain a better understanding of the options and potential 

liabilities with CCA. Council Member Sachs said it was nice to see Orange County Fire Authority 

Chief Capobianco back after a few weeks’ absence. 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Goodell 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Goodell discussed pending legislation and stated that the City should watch SB50, 

another housing bill that isn’t favorable to local control. He said the California government has 

Page 6 of 7Item# 1.



 

City Council Minutes          7                     March 26, 2019 

declared that the state housing needs are behind and that 3.5 million homes must be built over the 

next 7 years. He expressed doubt that that is possible due to all of the environmental concerns. 

Council Member Goodell announced that the Olympic Promotion Committee met with Doug 

Ingram who has coached at the college level and served on the United States Olympic Committee. 

Mr. Ingram gave an amazing presentation and the committee is excited about the idea of attracting 

athletes from other countries to stop and train in Mission Viejo on the way to Olympic games. Mr. 

Ingram will be supplying the committee with a proposal for marketing in the near future. Mayor 

Pro Tem Member Goodell announced that the Chamber of Commerce monthly mixer will be held 

at city hall and next week’s citizens police academy is sold out. He said that he was honored to be 

Principal for Day at Del Lago Elementary School. The kids were awesome and he was very 

impressed with the school and its principal. In closing, Mayor Pro Tem Goodell reminded residents 

of the Fina Diving Grand Prix at the Marguerite Aquatics Complex from April 11-14. He said it 

will be an amazing opportunity to come out and see some of the best divers in the world in both 

synchronized and individual categories. Tickets are available through a link on city’s website and 

he encouraged residents to come out for the event. 

 

Mayor Raths 

 

Mayor Raths thanked Lieutenant Vuong for adding extra security around the mosque in Mission 

Viejo after the tragic shooting in New Zealand. He said many, including himself, paid respect at 

the mosque by attending a candlelight vigil. He also discussed his outing with the Meals on Wheels 

group and his attendance at recent events including two Mayors’ prayer breakfasts; a Nowruz 

celebration in Irvine; the Chamber’s monthly mixer at Mount of Olives Church; and his service as 

Principal for a Day at Mission Viejo High School. Mayor Raths thanked principal Tricia Osborne 

who does a fantastic job keeping the school in line. He said the agricultural center is great and the 

Mission Viejo High School students are amazing. Mayor Raths noted that he also toured the trauma 

center at Mission Hospital, one of only two in the region, and he expressed his pride for the facility 

and all of the people who work there. 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT  

 

At the hour of 8:52 p.m., with no further business to come before the City Council at this session, 

Mayor Raths adjourned the meeting to Tuesday, April 9, 2019, at 5:00 p.m.  

 

 

______________________________________________  

Karen Hamman, City Clerk  

 

 

Approved at the meeting of April 9, 2019 

Page 7 of 7Item# 1.



1

AGENDA REPORT
Meeting Date

04/09/2019

Prepared By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services
Budgetary Review By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services / City Treasurer
Submitted By: Dennis Wilberg, City Manager

Agenda Title
Check Register dated March 15, 2019 in the amount of $2,809,639.65

Recommended Action
Ratify the accompanying check register.

Executive Summary
Government Code sections 37208(b) and 37209 provide that accounts payable warrants or checks drawn in payment of demands 
certified or approved by the finance director as conforming to a budget approved by ordinance or resolution of the legislative body 
need not be audited by the legislative body prior to payment.  City Council Policy #300-4 authorizes the Director of Administrative 
Services to audit the demands prior to payment and calls for such checks to be issued on a weekly basis and the check register for 
each of the weekly pay cycles to be submitted to the City Council for ratification at the next regular Council meeting.  

The following checks have been certified to be in accordance with the City’s approved budget. The checks have been issued and the 
check register is presented to the City Council for ratification.

In addition, Government Code section 37208(a) provides that payroll warrants or checks need not be audited by the legislative body 
prior to payment.  Payrolls shall be presented to the legislative body for ratification and approval at the first meeting after delivery of 
the payroll warrants or checks.  The sum total of any payroll checks issued within the week prior to the date of the check register is 
also noted on the accompanying check register.

Fiscal Impact:
Amount Requested: $
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?: Yes (If no, see attached fiscal analysis)
Prog/Fund #:  Category:  Pers.  Optg. Cap.   -or-   CIP#:  Fund#:

Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item
October 22, 1990 – Approved Council policy 300-4
February 2, 2004 – Approved the revision of Council policy 300-4

Attachments
Exhibit

Page 1 of 22Item# 2.



Page 2 of 22Item# 2.



Page 3 of 22Item# 2.



Page 4 of 22Item# 2.



Page 5 of 22Item# 2.



Page 6 of 22Item# 2.



Page 7 of 22Item# 2.



Page 8 of 22Item# 2.



Page 9 of 22Item# 2.



Page 10 of 22Item# 2.



Page 11 of 22Item# 2.



Page 12 of 22Item# 2.



Page 13 of 22Item# 2.



Page 14 of 22Item# 2.



Page 15 of 22Item# 2.



Page 16 of 22Item# 2.



Page 17 of 22Item# 2.



Page 18 of 22Item# 2.



Page 19 of 22Item# 2.



Page 20 of 22Item# 2.



Page 21 of 22Item# 2.



Page 22 of 22Item# 2.



1

AGENDA REPORT
Meeting Date

04/09/2019

Prepared By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services
Budgetary Review By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services / City Treasurer
Submitted By: Dennis Wilberg, City Manager

Agenda Title
Check Register dated March 22, 2019 in the amount of $318,479.76

Recommended Action
Ratify the accompanying check register.

Executive Summary
Government Code sections 37208(b) and 37209 provide that accounts payable warrants or checks drawn in payment of demands 
certified or approved by the finance director as conforming to a budget approved by ordinance or resolution of the legislative body 
need not be audited by the legislative body prior to payment.  City Council Policy #300-4 authorizes the Director of Administrative 
Services to audit the demands prior to payment and calls for such checks to be issued on a weekly basis and the check register for 
each of the weekly pay cycles to be submitted to the City Council for ratification at the next regular Council meeting.  

The following checks have been certified to be in accordance with the City’s approved budget. The checks have been issued and the 
check register is presented to the City Council for ratification.

In addition, Government Code section 37208(a) provides that payroll warrants or checks need not be audited by the legislative body 
prior to payment.  Payrolls shall be presented to the legislative body for ratification and approval at the first meeting after delivery of 
the payroll warrants or checks.  The sum total of any payroll checks issued within the week prior to the date of the check register is 
also noted on the accompanying check register.

Fiscal Impact:
Amount Requested: $
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?: Yes (If no, see attached fiscal analysis)
Prog/Fund #:  Category:  Pers. No  Optg. Cap.   -or-   CIP#:  Fund#:

Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item
October 22, 1990 – Approved Council policy 300-4
February 2, 2004 – Approved the revision of Council policy 300-4

Attachments
Exhibit

Page 1 of 14Item# 3.



Page 2 of 14Item# 3.



Page 3 of 14Item# 3.



Page 4 of 14Item# 3.



Page 5 of 14Item# 3.



Page 6 of 14Item# 3.



Page 7 of 14Item# 3.



Page 8 of 14Item# 3.



Page 9 of 14Item# 3.



Page 10 of 14Item# 3.



Page 11 of 14Item# 3.



Page 12 of 14Item# 3.



Page 13 of 14Item# 3.



Page 14 of 14Item# 3.



1

AGENDA REPORT
Meeting Date

04/09/2019

Prepared By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services
Budgetary Review By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services / City Treasurer
Submitted By: Dennis Wilberg, City Manager

Agenda Title
City Treasurer’s Monthly Report for February 2019

Recommended Action
Receive and file.

Executive Summary
A monthly report from the City Treasurer regarding receipts, disbursements and fund balances is required by Government Code 
Section 41004.  The accompanying report for February meets this Government Code requirement, as well as the requirements of 
other sections of the Government Code and the City’s Investment Policy.  This report excludes the investment portfolio of the 
Successor Agency of the Community Development Agency, the Housing Authority and the Community Development Financing 
Authority.

The City investment policy requires delivery to the City Council of the Treasurer’s report within 30 days after the close of the reporting 
period.  This item will be acted upon by the City at the first meeting possible after delivery to the Council.  In this case, the report is 
scheduled for the April 9, 2019 meeting.

Fiscal Impact:
Amount Requested: $
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?: (If no, see attached fiscal analysis)
Prog/Fund #:  Category:  Pers.  Optg. Cap.   -or-   CIP#:  Fund#:

Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item

Attachments
Exhibits – City’s Treasurer’s Report for February 2019; City Summary Report for February 2019; Graph Exhibit; City Reconciliation of 
Cash Disbursements for February 2019; Investment Transactions for February 2019; Investment Detail for February 2019

Page 1 of 10Item# 4.



Page 2 of 10Item# 4.



Page 3 of 10Item# 4.



Page 4 of 10Item# 4.



Page 5 of 10Item# 4.



Page 6 of 10Item# 4.



Page 7 of 10Item# 4.



Page 8 of 10Item# 4.



Page 9 of 10Item# 4.



Page 10 of 10Item# 4.



1

AGENDA REPORT
Meeting Date

04/09/2019

Prepared By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services
Budgetary Review By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services / City Treasurer
Submitted By: Dennis Wilberg, City Manager

Agenda Title
Mission Viejo Community Development Financing Authority (MVCDFA) Treasurer’s Monthly Report for February 2019

Recommended Action
Receive and file.

Executive Summary
A monthly report from the Authority Treasurer regarding receipts, disbursements and fund balances is required by Government Code 
Section 41004.  The accompanying report for February meets this Government Code requirement, as well as the requirements of 
other sections of the Government Code.

The Authority investment policy requires delivery to the Authority Board of the Treasurer’s report within 30 days after the close of the 
reporting period.  This item will be acted upon by the Authority at the first meeting possible after delivery to the Authority Board.  In 
this case, the report is scheduled for the April 9, 2019 meeting.

Fiscal Impact:
Amount Requested: $
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?: (If no, see attached fiscal analysis)
Prog/Fund #:  Category:  Pers.  Optg. Cap.   -or-   CIP#:  Fund#:

Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item

Attachments
Exhibits – CDFA Treasurer’s Monthly Report for February 2019; CDFA Investments Transactions Summary for February 2019; CDFA 
Investment Detail for February 2019

Page 1 of 5Item# 5.



Page 2 of 5Item# 5.



Page 3 of 5Item# 5.



Page 4 of 5Item# 5.



Page 5 of 5Item# 5.



1

AGENDA REPORT
Meeting Date

04/09/2019

Prepared By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services
Budgetary Review By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services / City Treasurer
Submitted By: Dennis Wilberg, City Manager

Agenda Title
Successor Agency of the Community Development Agency Treasurer’s Monthly Report for February 2019

Recommended Action
Receive and file.

Executive Summary
A monthly report from the Agency Treasurer regarding receipts, disbursements and fund balances is required by Government Code 
Section 41004.  The accompanying report for February meets this Government Code requirement.

The City investment policy requires delivery to the Agency Board of the Treasurer’s report within 30 days after the close of the 
reporting period.  This item will be acted upon by the Agency at the first meeting possible after delivery to the Agency Board.  In this 
case, the report is scheduled for the April 9, 2019 meeting. This report excludes the activity of the former CDA Housing Fund.

Fiscal Impact:
Amount Requested: $
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?: (If no, see attached fiscal analysis)
Prog/Fund #:  Category:  Pers.  Optg. Cap.   -or-   CIP#:  Fund#:

Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item

Attachments
Exhibits - SACDA Treasurer’s Report for February 2019; SACDA Reconciliation of Cash Disbursements for February 2019

Page 1 of 3Item# 6.



Page 2 of 3Item# 6.



Page 3 of 3Item# 6.



1

AGENDA REPORT
Meeting Date

04/09/2019

Prepared By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services
Budgetary Review By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services / City Treasurer
Submitted By: Dennis Wilberg, City Manager

Agenda Title
Mission Viejo Housing Authority (MVHA) Treasurer’s Monthly Report for February 2019

Recommended Action
Receive and file.

Executive Summary
A monthly report from the Authority Treasurer regarding receipts, disbursements and fund balances is required by Government Code 
Section 41004.  The accompanying report for February meets this Government Code requirement.

The Authority investment policy requires delivery to the Authority Board of the Treasurer’s report within 30 days after the close of the 
reporting period.  This item will be acted upon by the Authority at the first meeting possible after delivery to the Authority Board.  In 
this case, the report is scheduled for the April 9, 2019 meeting. This report includes the activity of the former CDA Housing Fund.

Fiscal Impact:
Amount Requested: $
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?: (If no, see attached fiscal analysis)
Prog/Fund #:  Category:  Pers.  Optg. Cap.   -or-   CIP#:  Fund#:

Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item

Attachments
Exhibits - MVHA Treasurer’s Report for February 2019; MVHA Reconciliation of Cash Disbursements for February 2019; MVHA 
Investment Detail for February 2019

Page 1 of 4Item# 7.



Page 2 of 4Item# 7.



Page 3 of 4Item# 7.



Page 4 of 4Item# 7.



1

AGENDA REPORT
Meeting Date

04/09/2019

Prepared By: Mark Chagnon, Director of Public Works
Budgetary Review By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services/City Treasurer
Submitted By: Dennis Wilberg, City Manager

Agenda Title
Fiscal Year 2019/20 Senate Bill 1 Road Repair and Accountability Act

Recommended Action
Adopt Resolution 19-XX Adopting a List of Projects for Fiscal Year 2019/20 Funded by Senate Bill 1: The Road Repair and 
Accountability Act of 2017

Executive Summary
Senate Bill 1 (SB 1), the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017, was passed by the California Legislature and signed into law by 
the governor on April 28, 2017.

SB 1 increased the per-gallon fuel excise taxes, diesel fuel sale taxes and vehicle registration fees to address road maintenance, 
rehabilitation and critical safety needs on both the state highway and local streets and road system.

Effective November 1, 2017, the state controller deposited various portions of the funding into a Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation 
Account (RMRA).  A percentage of the RMRA funding is apportioned by formula to eligible cities and counties.  In Fiscal Year 2019/20, 
the City of Mission Viejo is forecast to receive just under $1.7 million in SB 1 funding.

In order to be eligible to receive FY2019/20 SB 1 funding from the state controller, all eligible jurisdictions are required to adopt a list of 
eligible projects that are proposed to be funded with SB 1 funds in FY2019/20, and to transmit a resolution adopting the SB 1 project 
list to the California Transportation Commission no later than May 1, 2019.  The eligible projects must emphasize road maintenance, 
rehabilitation and critical safety projects.

Staff requests City Council adoption of the attached resolution which identifies two projects proposed for SB 1 funding: 

1) Residential Resurfacing (CIP 838), which would resurface the 107 public residential streets in Residential Resurfacing Area 6, the 
next residential area scheduled for pavement resurfacing in the City’s 7-year residential resurfacing schedule; and

2) Arterial Highway Resurfacing (CIP 837), which would overlay portions of Alicia Parkway, Jeronimo Road and La Paz Road to improve 
the pavement conditions of these arterials, where roadway segments have been classified as “fair” and “good” in the 2018 citywide 
Pavement Management Program update.

The SB 1 project list is required to identify the project description, project location, schedule for completion, and estimated useful life of 
each project proposed for funding with SB 1 funds.  This information is provided in Exhibit One of the attached resolution.

Further, the estimated FY2019/20 SB 1 revenues will be incorporated into the City’s FY19/20 budget, and the SB 1-funded projects will 
be included in the City’s FY19/20 CIP budget and the City’s Measure M2 Seven-Year Capital Improvement Program, which will be 
agendized for City Council action by June 2019.

Fiscal Impact:
Amount Requested: $0
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?: (If no, see attached fiscal analysis)
Prog/Fund #:  Category:  Pers.  Optg. Cap.   -or-   CIP#:  Fund#:

Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item
9-26-2017 City Council adopting of a FY2017/18 list of projects funded by SB 1
4-24-2018 City Council adopting of a FY2018/19 list of projects funded by SB 1

Page 1 of 7Item# 8.



2

Attachments
Draft Resolution 
Draft Resolution Exhibit [City of Mission Viejo SB 1 RMRA FY19/20 Project List]

Page 2 of 7Item# 8.



RESOLUTION NO. 19-XX

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MISSION VIEJO ADOPTING A LIST OF PROJECTS FOR 
FISCAL YEAR 2019/20 FUNDED BY SB 1: THE ROAD REPAIR 
AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT OF 2017

WHEREAS, Senate Bill 1 (SB 1) the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 (Chapter 
5, Statutes of 2017) was passed by the California Legislature and signed into law by the Governor 
in April 2017, in order to address the significant multi-modal transportation funding shortfalls 
statewide; and

WHEREAS, SB 1 includes accountability and transparency provisions that insure that the 
residents of the City of Mission Viejo are advised, each fiscal year, of projects proposed for SB 1 
funding, in addition to projects that have been completed and which were funded with SB 1 
funding, in the community; and

WHEREAS, the City of Mission Viejo must adopt a list of all projects proposed to receive 
funding from the Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA), created by SB 1 by 
resolution, which must include a description and the location of each proposed project, a proposed 
schedule for each project’s completion, and the estimated useful life of the improvement; and

WHEREAS, the City of Mission Viejo is estimated to receive an estimated $1.7 million in 
RMRA funding in Fiscal Year 2019/20 from SB 1; and

WHEREAS, this is the third year in which the City of Mission Viejo is receiving SB 1 
funding, which will enable the City of Mission Viejo to continue to implement road maintenance 
and rehabilitation projects that would not have been otherwise possible to the same degree, without 
SB 1 funding; and

WHEREAS, the City of Mission Viejo utilized its 2018 Pavement Management Program 
Update to develop the SB 1 project list, to ensure that SB 1 revenues are being used on high-
priority and cost-effective pavement management projects that also meet community priorities for 
transportation investment; and

WHEREAS, the funding from SB 1 will help the City of Mission Viejo to maintain and 
rehabilitate 36.7 lane miles of city residential streets, in addition to 17 lane miles of arterial 
highways, in Fiscal Year 2019/20 and similar projects in future years; and

WHEREAS, the 2018 City of Mission Viejo Pavement Management Program Update 
established that the City’s public streets and roads are in a “very good” pavement condition, and 
further, that the SB 1 revenues will assist the City to continue to maintain the overall quality of its 
road system in a “very good” pavement management condition in Fiscal Year 2019/20 and over 
the next decade; and

Page 3 of 7Item# 8.



WHEREAS, the SB 1 project list and overall investment in City of Mission Viejo local 
streets and roads infrastructure will have significant positive co-benefits statewide, with the focus 
on roadway pavement maintenance, and where applicable, using cutting-edge technology, 
materials and practices;

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MISSION VIEJO DOES 
HEREBY RESOLVE, DETERMINE AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1.  The foregoing recitals are true and correct.

SECTION 2.  The City of Mission Viejo Fiscal Year 2019/20 list of projects to be funded 
with Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account revenues are detailed in Exhibit One, attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.

SECTION 3.  The City Clerk shall certify the adoption of this resolution.

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 9th day of April, 2019.

Greg Raths
Mayor

I, KAREN HAMMAN, City Clerk of the City of Mission Viejo, hereby certify that the 
foregoing resolution was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Mission Viejo at a regular 
meeting thereof, held on the 9th day of April, 2019, by the following vote of the Council:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

ATTEST:

Karen Hamman
City Clerk

Page 4 of 7Item# 8.



EXHIBIT ONE

CITY OF MISSION VIEJO
SB 1 RMRA Fiscal Year 19/20 Project List

Project Name: Residential Resurfacing

Project Description: 
The City of Mission Viejo has established seven, distinct geographic areas to conduct the 
resurfacing of public residential streets in the City.  Each year, one of the seven areas is budgeted 
as a capital improvement program (CIP) project for public residential streets resurfacing.  The 
program operates on a rotating, seven-year cycle.

In Fiscal Year 2019/20, Residential Resurfacing Area 6 is scheduled for residential street 
resurfacing.  This project will resurface (overlay and slurry seal treatments) 36.7 lane miles of 
public residential streets in Area 6.  There are 107 public residential streets in Area 6.

The purpose of the City of Mission Viejo seven-year residential resurfacing schedule is to regularly 
maintain and improve the pavement condition of the City’s residential public streets.  The seven-
year cycle achieves a maximum useful life of the pavement treatments, to prevent the streets from 
degrading into more expensive pavement conditions that require more expensive resurfacing 
treatments. 

Project Location: 
Public residential streets in Residential Resurfacing Area 6, which is bounded by La Paz Road to 
the north, Felipe Road to the south and east, and Marguerite Parkway to the west, in the City of 
Mission Viejo, as illustrated on the next page.

Estimated Useful Life:
• Minimum: 7 years
• Maximum: 20 years

Estimated Completion Date: 
• October 2019

Page 5 of 7Item# 8.



EXHIBIT ONE

Page 6 of 7Item# 8.



EXHIBIT ONE

CITY OF MISSION VIEJO
SB 1 RMRA Fiscal Year 19-20 Project List

Project Name: Arterial Highway Resurfacing

Project Description: 
In Fiscal Year 2019/20, portions of the arterial streets of Alicia Parkway, Jeronimo Road and La 
Paz Road in the City of Mission Viejo will be resurfaced with overlay treatment.  The resurfacing 
project will overlay 17 lane miles of streets, and will tackle pavement conditions on roadway 
segments which have been classified as “fair” and “good” in the 2018 Citywide Pavement 
Management Program Update.

Project Location: 
On Alicia Parkway, from Marguerite Parkway east to Olympiad Road; on Jeronimo Road, from 
Arbolitos east to Olympiad Road; and on La Paz Road, from Marguerite Parkway east to 
Olympiad Road, in the City of Mission Viejo.

Estimated Useful Life:
• Minimum: 15 years
• Maximum: 20 years

Estimated Completion Date: 
• May 2020

Page 7 of 7Item# 8.



1

AGENDA REPORT
Meeting Date

04/09/2019

Prepared By: Mark Nix, Director of Recreation and Community Services
Budgetary Review By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services / City Treasurer
Submitted By: Dennis Wilberg, City Manager

Agenda Title
Saddleback Valley Unified School District Youth Services Contract 2019-2021

Recommended Action
Approve the Saddleback Valley Unified School District Youth Services Contract for 2019-2021 and increase participant fee by $15 per 
school year and $10 per summer session as recommended by the Community Services Commission.

Executive Summary
On Tuesday, March 17, 2019 the Saddleback Valley Unified School District (SVUSD) contract was presented to the Community 
Services Commission for review and recommendation.  With a unanimous vote, the Commission recommended to approve the 
contract and SVUSD’s recommendation to increase participant fees by $15 per school year and $10 per summer session.

The current SVUSD contract to provide Youth Services to the City of Mission Viejo was approved by the City Council in 2003. Since 
that time, ten (10) Amendments have been approved to provide Youth Services.

Kid's Factory is a drop-in after school recreation program for children in kindergarten through sixth grade. Activities are designed to 
promote the development of social and physical skills, as well as foster creativity, self-esteem and self-confidence.  Activities include 
organized games, crafts, sport options, walking excursions, guest speakers, and special events.  Kid’s Factory is offered at all Mission 
Viejo Elementary Schools.  Kid’s Factory operates for 37 weeks during the school year for a minimum of 2 hours after school.  
Summer Kid’s Factory operates 9 weeks at 11 locations in Mission Viejo for 4 hours with morning sessions and afternoon sessions 
provided.

Goal Zone is a fee-based after school program offered through Kid’s Factory.  Goal Zone is designed to promote teamwork and offer 
beginner sports basics.  Goal Zone is active at 9 Viejo Elementary Schools.  Each Goal Zone session is 1 hour per day, 1 day a week 
for 5 weeks, totaling 4 sessions offered per school year.

The Kid’s Factory component of the contract currently has 1,200 children registered in the school year program and 730 registered in 
the summer program through the 12 Capistrano Unified School District (CUSD) and SVUSD elementary schools serving Mission 
Viejo. The highest daily attendance is 655 during the school year at 12 sites, and 320 during the summer months at 11 sites. The 
Goal Zone component of Kid’s Factory has an average of 100 participants. The special events component of the contract includes 
Hometown Halloween, two (2) Visits with Santa, and Bunny Days. The combined attendance for all four special events is 
approximately 10,600 with Hometown Halloween attracting approximately 4,000 attendees and Bunny Days attracting approximately 
6,000 attendees.

The proposed contract cost increase in FY 2019-2020 (Exhibit C) is a 10% increase, which is similar to the increase experienced in 
the prior fiscal year due mainly to the $1.00 minimum wage increase (from $12.00 to $13.00). FY 2020-2021 (Exhibit C) includes a 
17% increase resulting from a $1.00 minimum wage increase (from $13.00 to $14.00).

The proposed 2019-2021 contract (Exhibit A) was updated to reflect an amended scope of work provided by SVUSD to the City of 
Mission Viejo for its Youth Services Program (Exhibit B). The cost to conduct the program in FY 2019-2020 will be $930,108 and 
$991,538 in FY 2020-2021. The projected costs are written to reflect max attendance for each program, wage and step increases, 
and contract increases for administrative staff. Staff have worked with SVUSD to refine program supply costs, review appropriate 
staffing needs and identify inefficiencies in programming.  Changes to the scope of work include:
• Staffing for all day Kindergarten. 
• Taking steps to create a more kinder-friendly afterschool and summer program.

In an effort to reduce city subsidy with the contract increases, staff and the CS Commission are recommending to increase the Kid’s 
Factory school year participant fee by $15, going from $65 to $80, and by $10 for the summer session, going from $50 to $60. The 
SVUSD Kids Factory program experienced a participant fee increase in 2017 when pricing changed from $50 to $65 per school year 
and $40 to $50 for the summer session. Participation for this program continued to climb even with the fee change.  With this 

Page 1 of 26Item# 9.



2

recommended fee increase, there is an additional estimated revenue of $23,449 per fiscal year.  Should the fee increase be 
approved, the proposed cost to conduct the program in FY 2019 – 2020 will be $906,659 and the cost for FY 2020-2021 will be 
$968,089.  The program will continue to offer payment plans and scholarships to those families experiencing financial hardships.

Fiscal Impact:
Amount Requested: $
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?: (If no, see attached fiscal analysis)
Prog/Fund #: 661101  Category:  Pers.  Optg. Cap.   -or-   CIP#:  Fund#:

Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item
April 25, 2017:  2017-2019 SVUSD Contract

Attachments
Exhibit A: 2019-2021 Saddleback Valley Unified School District Contract
Exhibit B: Scope of Services
Exhibit C: Budget summary and detail report for Fiscal Year 2019-2021

Page 2 of 26Item# 9.



Page 1 of 7             Exhibit A 

RECREATION & COMMUNITY SERVICES PROGRAMS AGREEMENT 

 

BETWEEN 

 

CITY OF MISSION VIEJO 

 

AND 

 

SADDLEBACK VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

 

 

 THIS AGREEMENT is entered into this __1st___ day of __July___, 2019, by and between 

the CITY OF MISSION VIEJO (hereinafter “City”) and the SADDLEBACK VALLEY UNIFIED 

SCHOOL DISTRICT (hereinafter “District”). 

 

The parties hereto mutually agree as follows: 

 

1. Recreation and Community Services Programs 

 

District shall provide recreational and community services activities using facilities 

designated by the City.  The location, scope, and nature of the recreational and community 

services programs are as specified in Exhibit B, which are attached hereto and incorporated 

herein as though set forth in full.  City and District may from time to time amend, modify, 

and/or delete the specific recreational and community services activities to be provided 

pursuant to this Agreement in writing and signed by both parties. 

 

2. Advertising of Recreation and Community Services Programs 

 

District shall, at a minimum, submit press releases to the local newspapers and City blog 

with the locations and scheduled hours of programs and activities, and publish the same in 

the quarterly brochure, and flyers distributed to local residents, employees, and students.  

District shall promote City sponsored programs at local community events as requested by 

the City when possible.  Copies of all publications will be provided to City at least 3 weeks 

prior to printing for approval.  District will acknowledge City as sponsor of programs 

provided pursuant to this Agreement. 

 

3. Designated Representatives 

 

City and District shall each designate one (1) person to be responsible for the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement.  Furthermore, the District Director of Recreation & 

Community Services, or his/her designee, will attend those City Staff, Committee, 

Community Services Commission, or City Council meetings as reasonably requested by the 

City. 

 

 

Page 3 of 26Item# 9.



Page 2 of 7             Exhibit A 

4. Compensation and Accounting 

 

A. City agrees to compensate District for services provided pursuant to this 

Agreement at a sum not to exceed that set forth in the Program Plan Budget, 

attached hereto as Exhibit C and incorporated herein as though set forth in full, 

payable on a cost reimbursement basis upon District’s submission of a monthly 

detailed invoice in accordance with subparagraph B.  Should any program 

offsetting revenue projections exceed actual revenue, District shall provide a 

revised Program Plan Budget not to exceed original Program Plan Budget 

amount, for City approval.  Such payments include overhead administrative 

support costs as specified in the Program Plan Budget. 

 

B. District shall maintain sufficient accounting records, time cards, and other 

documentation as deemed necessary in order to adequately document costs for 

the provisions of recreational and community services under this Agreement.  

Said documents shall be maintained in a safe and secure location with the District 

for three (3) years following the termination of this Agreement.  Within sixty 

(60) days after the conclusion of each month of the fiscal year (July 1 through 

June 30), the contractor shall invoice City for City’s share of District’s actual 

costs of conducting the community recreational and community services 

programs provided for in this Agreement.  Said invoice shall include line item 

detail referencing expenditures and revenues for each program areas outlined in 

the budget.  The total amount invoiced by District shall not exceed that amount 

shown in the Program Plan Budget attached hereto as Exhibit C. 

 

5. Evaluation Reports 

 

District shall provide City with monthly reports in a format containing such information 

about the programs as specified by the Director of Recreation & Community Services, 

which are due to the City ten (10) days prior to the monthly Community Services 

Commission meetings.  City shall provide dates of monthly Community Services 

Commission meetings on July 1, and notify District of any date changes twenty (20) days 

prior to the meeting.  A semi-annual report for the period of July 1 through December 31 is 

due to the City no later than the following February 15, and for the period of January 1 

through June 30 no later than the following August 15, informing the City of the activities 

and accomplishments for the preceding evaluation period, focusing on how the recreational 

and community services programs met the goals and objectives set for that period, as 

established by District and City. 

 

6. Accident/Incident Reports 

 

District shall report to City any accident or incident requiring emergency response that 

occurs at the programs specified in Exhibit B within twelve (12) hours of the occurrence.  

Official reports must be completed and submitted to the City within forty-eight (48) hours of 

the occurrence Monday through Friday, and the following Monday if occurrence is Friday 

Page 4 of 26Item# 9.



Page 3 of 7             Exhibit A 

night through Sunday.  City shall provide District with a designee and telephone number for 

notification of occurrence after normal working hours. 

 

7. Inspection of Records and Activities 

 

City may review and inspect recreational and community services activities offered under 

this Agreement.  City may also review and inspect District’s accounting records related to 

this Agreement during normal business hours while this Agreement is in force, provided that 

City give District two (2) business days written notice of its request to inspect District’s 

records. 

 

8. Use and Purchase of Equipment and Service Contracts 

 

District is responsible to ensure that programs, events and activities do not exceed the 

budget outlined in Exhibit C or deviations therefrom unless approved in writing by the 

City’s representative in accordance with Section 3.  The City understands and agrees that 

should a special or scheduled event(s) fail to occur due to poor weather, acts of God, civil 

disturbance, or similar unavoidable circumstances, and the contract between the event 

providers or performers and the District require the payment of a cancellation fee up to but 

not exceeding the contract amount, the District may include such amount in the invoices the 

District presents to the City for payment. 

 

City and District agree that title to, and possession of, any and all equipment purchased by 

District with funds that are subsequently fully reimbursed by City pursuant to this 

Agreement shall revert to City upon termination of recreational and community services 

programs authorized by this Agreement.  Due to the uniqueness of District’s recreational 

programs, District and City agree to the interchangeable use of equipment and supplies 

purchased pursuant to this Agreement and under other District recreation and community 

services programs.  Purchase of any individual piece of equipment costing more than Five 

Hundred Dollars ($500.00) or any Service Contract of more than Five Hundred Dollars 

($500.00) must have prior approval by City documented in writing. 

 

9. Facility Use 

 

Neither party shall charge any facility cost or fee to the other party for use of the facilities 

specified under this Agreement.  Each party to this Agreement shall be responsible for 

maintenance of its own facilities.  City agrees that no recreational or community services 

programs may be offered under this Agreement which disrupts the programs on any District 

facility. 

 

10. Indemnification 

 

The District agrees to, and shall defend, indemnify, protect, and hold harmless the City, its 

elective and appointive boards, officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers from 

and against any and all claims, demands, losses, defense costs, fines, penalties, expenses, 

causes of action and judgments at law or in equity, or liability for any kind or nature which 

Page 5 of 26Item# 9.



Page 4 of 7             Exhibit A 

the City, its elective and appointive boards, officers, officials, employees, agents, and 

volunteers may sustain or incur or which may be imposed upon them for injury to or death 

of persons, or damage to property arising out of District’s negligent or wrongful act(s) or 

omission(s) under the terms of this Agreement, excepting only liability arising out of the 

sole negligence of the City. 

 

The City agrees to, and shall defend, indemnify, protect, and hold harmless the District, its 

elective and appointive boards, officers, officials, employees, agents and volunteers from 

and against any and all claims, demands, losses, defense costs, fines, penalties, expenses, 

causes of action and judgments at law or in equity, or liability of any kind or nature which 

the District, its elective and appointive boards, officers, officials, employees, agents and 

volunteers may sustain or incur or which may be imposed upon them for injury to or death 

of persons, damage to property arising out of the City’s negligent or wrongful act(s) or 

omission(s) under the terms of this Agreement, excepting only liability arising out of the 

sole negligence of the District. 

 

11. Insurance Requirements 

 

City and SVUSD agree to each maintain commercial general liability insurance, either 

through an insurance carrier licensed to do business in the state of California or a joint 

powers insurance authority, with the amount of said insurance required to be at least $1 

million per occurrence and $2 million in the aggregate. The City and SVUSD each agree to 

provide thirty (30) days written notice to the other party if it proposes any substitution, 

change, or other modification of the aforementioned insurance coverage, which will result in 

a decrease in the scope or amount of such coverage. 

 

SVUSD shall provide a Certificate of General Liability Insurance in the amount of not less 

than $1 million per occurrence and $2 million in the aggregate and an additional insured 

endorsement naming the City of Mission Viejo, its officers, officials, employees, agents, and 

volunteers as additional insured. 

 

City shall provide SVUSD with a Certificate of General Liability insurance in an amount not 

less than $1 million per occurrence and $2 million in the aggregate and list SVUSD as an 

additional protected party.  

 

12. Employees and Volunteers under this Agreement 

 

District shall not discriminate in violation of the law in the recruiting, hiring, promotion, 

demotion, or termination practices on the basis of race, color, national origin, religious 

creed, ancestry, sex, age, physical handicap, or sexual orientation in the performance of the 

Agreement and shall comply with all applicable state and federal statutes and regulations 

pertaining to such matters. 

 

District shall conduct background checks for all potential employees and volunteers secured 

by District so as to enable District to make an informed decision on whether such person 

should be allowed to work on the recreation and community services programs being 

Page 6 of 26Item# 9.



Page 5 of 7             Exhibit A 

provided by the District.  District shall comply with all state and federal laws regarding 

fingerprinting of employees.  To the best of its ability, District shall, in the operation of the 

programs and services of this Agreement, employ, hire or permit the employment of only 

such personnel or volunteers as will assure a high standard of service to the public and 

cooperation to the City.  District shall provide City with a copy of its staff training policies 

and procedures for All City-sponsored programs, and provide City with updated training 

information as necessary.  All such personnel or volunteers, while in the performance of this 

Agreement, shall be clean, neat in appearance, courteous at all times, and appropriately 

attired with a City of Mission Viejo logo displayed on staff shirt as approved by City and 

District.  Badges or other suitable means of identification must also be worn, in such 

instances as appropriate.  No personnel employed or volunteers hired by District, while 

performing services and programs under this Agreement, shall be under the influence of 

illegal drugs, narcotics, other controlled substances or alcohol, or use improper language, act 

in a loud, boisterous or otherwise improper manner.  In the event an employee or volunteer 

is not satisfactory, as herein defined, the City may recommend District to remove him/her 

from performing services and programs under this Agreement immediately after written 

notice is received by District. 

 

Persons employed or hired by District in connection with the City recreation and community 

services programs under this Agreement shall be employees or volunteers of the District, 

employed or volunteering in whatever capacity and employment or volunteer categories the 

District shall choose.  The District shall not be required to secure approval from the City 

prior to employment or hiring of such persons. 

 

13. Term of Agreement 

 

The term of this Agreement shall commence July 1, 2019 but not extend beyond June 30, 

2021.  By mutual agreement of the parties in writing, this Agreement may be extended from 

year-to-year. 

 

14. Termination 

 

Either party may terminate this Agreement with or without cause at any time upon ninety 

(90) days prior written notice to the other of its intention to terminate this Agreement.  In the 

event this Agreement is terminated with cause, the non-terminating party shall be liable for 

all cancellation costs, which may be incurred as a result of executed contracts.  In the event 

this Agreement is terminated without cause, the terminating party shall be liable for all 

cancellation costs, which may be incurred as a result of executed contracts. 

 

15. Calendar Days 

 

All references to days to act, respond or be calculated shall mean calendar days, not business 

days, and shall be calculated on a consecutive uninterrupted basis. 

Page 7 of 26Item# 9.



Page 6 of 7             Exhibit A 

16. Breach of Contract 

 

In the event either party breaches a material provision of this Agreement (“Breach”), the 

non-breaching party shall give the other party notice of such Breach.  In the event the 

Breach is remedied within thirty (30) days, the notice shall be null and void.  If such Breach 

is not remedied within the specified period, the non-breaching party may elect to terminate 

this Agreement.  The rights of termination referred to herein in Section 14 and this Section 

15 are not intended to be exclusive, and are in addition to any other rights available to either 

party at law or in equity.  In the case of termination under Section 14 or this Section 15 

hereof, the City will not be obligated to provide funding beyond actual District’s expense or 

obligations incurred for the period of the Agreement including any cancellation or 

termination charges, which may be incurred. 

 

17. Notices and payments shall be sent to District addressed as follows: 

 

SVUSD Community Services Department 

Saddleback Valley Unified School District 

25631 Peter A. Hartman Way 

Mission Viejo, CA  92691 

Attention:  District Supervisor, Community Services 

 

 

Notices and invoices shall be sent to City as follows: 

 

City of Mission Viejo 

200 Civic Center 

Mission Viejo, CA  92691 

Attention:  Director of Recreation and Community Services 

 

18. Integration 

 

This Agreement contains the entire Agreement between the parties, and neither party relies 

on any warranty or representation not contained herein. 

 

19. Binding Effect 

 

City and District have the right, power, legal capacity, and authority to enter into and 

perform their obligations under this Agreement.  Both persons executing this Agreement on 

behalf of District and City are authorized to do so, and by so executing this Agreement, 

hereby bind District and City to the terms hereof. 

 

20. Attorney’s Fees 

 

In the event of any action or proceeding instituted between District and City in connection 

with this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other party all 

Page 8 of 26Item# 9.



Page 7 of 7             Exhibit A 

of its costs and expenses, including, without limitation, court costs, all costs of appeals, and 

reasonable attorneys’ fees. 

 

 

 

 

  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, District and City have executed this Agreement 

as of the date first written above. 

 

    SADDLEBACK VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

Dated:  __________, 2019  __________________________________________________ 

      

    Crystal Turner, Ed.D. 

Superintendent 

 

    APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

    CITY OF MISSION VIEJO 

 

Dated:  __________, 2019  __________________________________________________ 

    Greg Raths 

    Mayor 

 

    ATTEST: 

 

Dated:  _________, 2019 __________________________________________________ 

    Karen Hamman 

    City Clerk 

 

    APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

Dated:  __________, 2019 __________________________________________________ 

    William Curley 

    City Attorney 

Page 9 of 26Item# 9.



Scope of Services: Exhibit B 

 

Saddleback Valley Unified School District 2019-2021 

The current contract with Saddleback Valley Unified School District (SVUSD) to provide Youth Services to 

the City of Mission Viejo: 

 

Kid's Factory is a drop-in after school recreation program for children in kindergarten through sixth grade. 

Activities are designed to promote the development of social and physical skills, as well as foster creativity, 

self-esteem and self-confidence.  Activities include organized games, crafts, sport options, walking 

excursions, guest speakers and special events.  Kid’s Factory provides services at 12 Mission Viejo 

Elementary Schools.  Kid’s Factory operates for 37 weeks during the school year for a minimum of two 

hours after school.  Summer Kid’s Factory operates for nine weeks at 11 locations in Mission Viejo.  

Locations provide 4 hours of programming splitting AM and PM options. 

Goal Zone is a fee based after school program offered through Kid’s Factory.  Goal Zone is designed to 

promote teamwork and offer beginner sports basics.  Goal Zone is active at nine Mission Viejo Elementary 

Schools.  Each Goal Zone session is 1-hour per day, one day a week, for five weeks, a total of four sessions 

are offered per school year. 

The special events component of the contract includes Hometown Halloween, A Visit with Santa, and 

Bunny Days. The combined attendance for all four special events is approximately 10,600, with Hometown 

Halloween having approximately 4,000 attendees and Bunny Days having approximately 6,000 attendees. 

The proposed contract cost increase in FY 2019-2020(Exhibit B)  is a 10% increase which is  similar to the 

increase experienced in the prior fiscal year due mainly to the $1.00 minimum wage increase (from$12.00 

to $13.00). FY 2020 – 2021 (Exhibit C) includes a 17% increase resulting from a $1.00 minimum wage 

increase (from $13.00-$14.00). 

The proposed 2019 – 2021 contract (Exhibit A) has been updated to reflect an amended scope of work 

provided by SVUSD to the City of Mission Viejo for its Youth Services Program (Exhibit B). The cost to 

conduct the program in FY 2019-2020 will be $930,108 and $991,538 in FY 2020-2021. The projected costs 

are written to reflect max attendance for each program, wage and step increases and contract increases 

for administrative staff. Staff have worked with SVUSD to refine program supply costs, review appropriate 

staffing needs and identify inefficiencies in programming.  Changes to scope of work and cost saving 

measures include: 

 Staffing for  all day Kindergarten  

 Taking steps to create a more kinder-friendly afterschool and summer program 
 

Page 10 of 26Item# 9.



Mission Viejo

BUDGET PROPOSAL - YOUTH SERVICES PROGRAMS 2019-2020

PROGRAM SUMMARY Proposed

Administration 253,739

Kid's Factory - summer 120,846

Kid's Factory - school year 506,604

Goal Zone 4,946

Halloween 17,037

Visits with Santa 8,426

Bunny Days 18,511

TOTAL  $  930,108 

* With the proposed fee increase the new total for the 2019-2020 contract will be $906,659

EXHIBIT C

Page 11 of 26Item# 9.



ADMINISTRATION

Management Team - 2.0 FTE
Proposed

Program Mgmt - Community Services Supervisor 90,510

Program Mgmt - Community Services Assistant Coordinator 54,187

Benefits /Employee processing - Supervisor 45,352

Benefits/Employee processing - Assistant Coordinator 34,347

Supplies 1,000

Training and Development 300

Mileage 2,100

Promotion 10,200

Cell phones 1,380

Support Services 6% 14,363

TOTAL NET COST - ADMINISTRATION 253,739

EXHIBIT C

Page 12 of 26Item# 9.



KIDS FACTORY

Summer (11 Sites)
Proposed

Rec. Leaders 84,725

Staff Training including CPR/First Aid 3,379

Benefits - 5.47% (non-PERS) Rec Leaders 4,819

Sr. Rec. Leader 12,038

Benefits - 23.39% (PERS) Sr Rec Ldr 2,816

Supplies - Crafts 5,500

Supplies - Games/Equipment 3,800

Supplies - Office, First Aid, Uniforms, Manuals, Forms 3,800

Support Services - 25% 30,219

Revenue:  Registration fee (31,750)

Activenet Fees 1,500 

TOTAL NET COST - KIDS FACTORY SUMMER 120,846

EXHIBIT C

Page 13 of 26Item# 9.



KIDS FACTORY

School Year (12 sites)
Proposed

Rec. Leaders 367,712

Staff Training including CPR/First Aid 7,588

Benefits - 5.47% (non-PERS) Rec Leaders 20,529

Sr. Rec. Leader 18,360

Benefits - 23.39% (PERS) Sr Rec Ldr 4,294

Supplies - Crafts 30,500

Supplies - Games/Equipment 5,000

Supplies - Office, First Aid, Uniforms, Manuals, Forms, Cell 

Phones
9,860

Support Services - 25% 115,961

Revenue (78,000)

Activenet Fees 4,800 

TOTAL NET COST - KIDS FACTORY SCHOOL YEAR 506,604

EXHIBIT C

Page 14 of 26Item# 9.



GOAL ZONE

School Year
Proposed

Rec Leader II 5,056

Benefits - 5.47% 277

Supplies - Tshirts 3,120

Supplies - Equipment/Promotion Materials 1,200

Support Services - 25% 2,413

Revenue: Registration fee (7,600)

Activenet Fees 480

TOTAL NET COST - GOAL ZONE 4,946

EXHIBIT C

Page 15 of 26Item# 9.



HALLOWEEN

(3 hours of programming)
Proposed

(5) Rec. Leaders - event prep (3 hours) 203

(20) Rec. Leaders - event set-up (5 hours) 1,288

(30) Rec. Leaders - event operation (3 hours) 1,159

(20) Rec. Leaders - event break down (3 hours) 773

Benefits - (non-PERS) 5.47% 187

Sr. Rec. Leader 600

Benefits - (PERS) 23.39% 140

Supplies 12,000

25% Support Services 4,087

Revenue: (crafts, games, etc.) (3,400)

TOTAL NET COST - HALLOWEEN 17,037

EXHIBIT C

Page 16 of 26Item# 9.



VISITS WITH SANTA

(6 hours of programming)
Proposed

(20) Rec. Leaders - Fri set-up and event (4 hours) 1,030

(20) Rec. Leaders - Sat event and break down (5 hours) 1,288

Benefits - (non-PERS) 5.47% 127

Sr. Rec. Leader 411

Benefits - (PERS) 23.39% 96

Supplies - Decorations, crafts, candy, etc. 1,875

Food/Food Services 3,000

Santa Payment 1275

25% Support Services 2,275

Revenue: (3,400)

Activenet Fees 450 

TOTAL NET COST - VISITS WITH SANTA 8,426

EXHIBIT C

Page 17 of 26Item# 9.



BUNNY DAYS

(3 hours of programming)
Proposed

(5) Rec. Leaders - event prep (3 hours) 218

(20) Rec. Leaders - event set-up (5 hours) 1,400

(30) Rec. Leaders - event operation (3 hours) 1,260

(20) Rec. Leaders - event break down (3 hours)                    840 

Benefits - (non-PERS) 5.47% 203

Sr. Rec. Leader 638

Benefits - (PERS) 23.39% 149

Supplies - Prizes, candy, decorations, crafts 12,000

Pony rides/hayrides/roving entertainer 2,500

25% Support Services 4,802

Revenue: (crafts, games, etc.) (5,500)

TOTAL NET COST - BUNNY DAYS 18,511

EXHIBIT C

Page 18 of 26Item# 9.



Mission Viejo

BUDGET PROPOSAL - YOUTH SERVICES PROGRAMS 2020-2021

PROGRAM SUMMARY Proposed

Administration 261,956

Kid's Factory - summer 130,833

Kid's Factory - school year 548,204

Goal Zone 5,478

Halloween 17,445

Visits with Santa 8,704

Bunny Days 18,919

TOTAL  $        991,538 

* With the proposed fee increase the new total for the 2020-2021 contract will be $968,089

EXHIBIT C

Page 19 of 26Item# 9.



ADMINISTRATION

Management Team - 2.0 FTE
Proposed

Program Mgmt - Community Services Supervisor 90,510

Program Mgmt - Community Services Assistant Coordinator 58,032

Benefits /Employee processing - Supervisor 47,796

Benefits/Employee processing - Assistant Coordinator 35,810

Supplies 1,000

Training and Development 300

Mileage 2,100

Promotion 10,200

Cell phones 1,380

Support Services 6% 14,828

TOTAL NET COST - ADMINISTRATION 261,956

EXHIBIT C

Page 20 of 26Item# 9.



KIDS FACTORY

Summer (11 Sites)
Proposed

Rec. Leaders 91,187

Staff Training including CPR/First Aid 3,615

Benefits - 5.47% (non-PERS) Rec Leaders 5,186

Sr. Rec. Leader 12,788

Benefits - 23.39% (PERS) Sr Rec Ldr 2,991

Supplies - Crafts 5,500

Supplies - Games/Equipment 3,800

Supplies - Office, First Aid, Uniforms, Manuals, Forms 3,800

Support Services - 25% 32,217

Revenue:  Registration fee (31,750)

Activenet Fees 1,500 

TOTAL NET COST - KIDS FACTORY SUMMER 130,833

EXHIBIT C

Page 21 of 26Item# 9.



KIDS FACTORY

School Year (12 sites)
Proposed

Rec. Leaders 396,859

Staff Training including CPR/First Aid 8,193

Benefits - 5.47% (non-PERS) Rec Leaders 22,156

Sr. Rec. Leader 19,900

Benefits - 23.39% (PERS) Sr Rec Ldr 4,655

Supplies - Crafts 30,500

Supplies - Games/Equipment 5,000

Supplies - Office, First Aid, Uniforms, Manuals, Forms, Cell 

Phones
9,860

Support Services - 25% 124,281

Revenue (78,000)

Activenet Fees 4,800 

TOTAL NET COST - KIDS FACTORY SCHOOL YEAR 548,204

EXHIBIT C

Page 22 of 26Item# 9.



GOAL ZONE

School Year
Proposed

Rec Leader II 5,460

Benefits - 5.47% 299

Supplies - Tshirts 3,120

Supplies - Equipment/Promotion Materials 1,200

Support Services - 25% 2,520

Revenue: Registration fee (7,600)

Activenet Fees 480

TOTAL NET COST - GOAL ZONE 5,478

EXHIBIT C

Page 23 of 26Item# 9.



HALLOWEEN

(3 hours of programming)
Proposed

(5) Rec. Leaders - event prep (3 hours) 218

(20) Rec. Leaders - event set-up (5 hours) 1,388

(30) Rec. Leaders - event operation (3 hours) 1,249

(20) Rec. Leaders - event break down (3 hours) 833

Benefits - (non-PERS) 5.47% 202

Sr. Rec. Leader 638

Benefits - (PERS) 23.39% 149

Supplies 12,000

25% Support Services 4,169

Revenue: (crafts, games, etc.) (3,400)

TOTAL NET COST - HALLOWEEN 17,445

EXHIBIT C

Page 24 of 26Item# 9.



VISITS WITH SANTA

(6 hours of programming)
Proposed

(20) Rec. Leaders - Fri set-up and event (4 hours) 1,110

(20) Rec. Leaders - Sat event and break down (5 hours) 1,388

Benefits - (non-PERS) 5.47% 137

Sr. Rec. Leader 437

Benefits - (PERS) 23.39% 102

Supplies - Decorations, crafts, candy, etc. 1,875

Food/Food Services 3,000

Santa Payment 1275

25% Support Services 2,331

Revenue: (3,400)

Activenet Fees 450 

TOTAL NET COST - VISITS WITH SANTA 8,704

EXHIBIT C

Page 25 of 26Item# 9.



BUNNY DAYS

(3 hours of programming)
Proposed

(5) Rec. Leaders - event prep (3 hours) 233

(20) Rec. Leaders - event set-up (5 hours) 1,500

(30) Rec. Leaders - event operation (3 hours) 1,350

(20) Rec. Leaders - event break down (3 hours)                    900 

Benefits - (non-PERS) 5.47% 218

Sr. Rec. Leader 676

Benefits - (PERS) 23.39% 158

Supplies - Prizes, candy, decorations, crafts 12,000

Pony rides/hayrides/roving entertainer 2,500

25% Support Services 4,884

Revenue: (crafts, games, etc.) (5,500)

TOTAL NET COST - BUNNY DAYS 18,919

EXHIBIT C

Page 26 of 26Item# 9.



1

AGENDA REPORT
Meeting Date

04/09/2019

Prepared By: Mark Nix, Director of Recreation and Community Services
Budgetary Review By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services / City Treasurer
Submitted By: Dennis Wilberg, City Manager

Agenda Title
Capital Improvement Program Prioritization as Recommended by the Community Services Commission

Recommended Action
Receive report from staff and file.

Executive Summary
At the February 12, 2019 City Council meeting, the Council requested the Community Services (CS) Commission to review a listing of 
potential Capital Improvement Projects (CIP) in preparation for the development of the 2019-21 budget.  At the February 19, 2019 CS 
Commission Meeting, the Commission was asked to review and prioritize the list of projects and make a recommendation to the City 
Council during their March 19, 2019 Community Services Commission Meeting.

The CS Commission had an opportunity to research project concepts, visit sites, and hear comments from the public prior to 
approving their recommended CIP priority list based solely on public need and benefit.  Renovating existing facilities prior to adding 
new facilities was a common theme among the Commissioners.  Below is the prioritized listing of projects unanimously approved by 
the Commission at their March 19, 2019 meeting.  As part of their motion, the CS Commission is recommending this list become a 
multi-year plan and unedited until it is exhausted.

1. Montanoso Rehabilitation
2. Fitness Equipment/Gym Flooring (Montanoso/Sierra)
3. Sierra Recreation Center Rehabilitation
4. Norman P. Murray: Sycamore Room Rehabilitation
5. Craycraft Park: Expanded Parking
6. Craycraft Park: Restroom/Snack Bar Renovation
7. Norman P. Murray: Individual Handicap Accessible Restroom
8. Pavion Park Picnic Shelter
9. 2 New Bocce Ball Courts
10. Felipe Tennis Center – Phase 2
11. Marty Russo Youth Athletic Park: Ballfield Lights
12. Lake Loop Connectivity
13. Marty Russo Youth Athletic Park Ballfield: Additional Restroom
14. La Mancha Park Playground
15. Shade Structures at Various Parks
16. World Cup Soccer Center Parking Lot Lights
17. Upgrade Trail between Potocki & Newhart
18. Lakeside Park/Memorial
19. La Paws Dog Park: Park Lighting
20. La Paws Dog Park: Parking Lot Paving
21. La Paws Dog Park: Security Cameras
22. Craycraft Park: Scoreboards*
23. La Paws Dog Park: Gate Card Readers*

*The Community Services Commission requested these items to be removed from the list based on previous recommendations made 
by the Commission and input received by the Mission Viejo Girls Softball Organization (MVGS).  MVGS recognized the City has many 
projects on this list and indicated the scoreboards would be nice to have, but was no longer a priority when compared to the other 
projects.

This list will be used when preparing the 2019-2021 budget and when (if any) additional funding becomes available for CIP projects.  
For this reason, the City Council should modify the list at this time should their prioritization differ from the Community Services 
Commission’s recommendation.

Page 1 of 35Item# 10.



2

Fiscal Impact:
Amount Requested: $
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?: (If no, see attached fiscal analysis)
Prog/Fund #:  Category:  Pers.  Optg. Cap.   -or-   CIP#:  Fund#:

Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item
February 12, 2019:  2019-2021 Pre-Budget Discussion

Attachments
Exhibit A: March 19, 2019 Capital Improvement Program Prioritization Staff Report
Exhibit B: March 19, 2019 Community Services Commission Meeting Minutes
Exhibit C: CIP Public Feedback

Page 2 of 35Item# 10.



Exhibit A 

 

      AGENDA REPORT 

                              COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMISSION 

 

 

 

TO: Community Services Commission 

 

MEETING DATE: March 19, 2019 

 

FROM: Mark Nix, Director of Recreation and Community Services 

 

SUBJECT:   Capital Improvement Program Prioritization 

 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  

Approve and recommend to City Council a prioritized Capital Improvement Projects listing. 

 

DISCUSSION: 

At the February 12, 2019 City Council meeting, the Council requested the Community Services 

Commission review a listing of potential Capital Improvement Projects (CIPs) in preparation for the 

development of the 2019-21 budget.  At the February 19, 2019 CS Commission Meeting, the 

Commission was asked to review and prioritize the list of projects and make a recommendation to 

the City Council.  At this meeting, the Community Services Commission added an individual use 

handicap accessible restroom at the Norman P. Murray Community & Senior Center to be considered 

with the other projects.  

 

Staff is not anticipating available revenue in the General Fund to cover CIPs, but does acknowledge 

there are projects that should be considered if additional funding sources become available. In the FY 

2017-2019 budget certain projects were identified as Council priorities. There are three projects 

remaining on the priority list that have not been funded and are as follows: 

• Montanoso Recreation Center Rehabilitation 

o Pool equipment replacement 

o Pool and spa re-plaster 

o Facility signage 

o Window replacement 

o LED lighting upgrade 

o Deck work 

o Outdoor showers 

o Patio improvements 

 

• Craycraft Park improvements 

o Expanded parking 

o Restroom/snack bar renovation 

o Scoreboards 

 

• Lakeside Park 

There are a number of projects that have been recommended by Council, Commission, residents, and staff 

Page 3 of 35Item# 10.



Exhibit A 

for consideration. They are listed in alphabetical order by facility. 

• Shade Structures at Various Parks 

 

• Replacement of Fitness Equipment & Gym Flooring at Montanoso & Sierra Recreation Centers 

 

• Felipe Tennis Center 

o Add 2nd community building 

o Fencing  

o Replace tennis court lights 

 

• Lake Loop Connectivity 

o This item was approved as part of the Master Plan and identified as worthwhile to pursue 

by the Council 

 

• La Mancha Park 

o Add playground 

 

• La Paws Dog Park 

o Gate card readers 

o Park lighting 

o Parking lot paving 

o Security cameras 

 

• Marty Russo Youth Athletic Park 

o Ballfield lights o Restroom 

 

• Norman P. Murray Community and Senior Center 

o Individual handicap accessible 

restroom 

o Sycamore Room rehabilitation 

o Two new Bocce Ball courts 

o Upgrade trail between Potocki 

and Newhart 

 

• Pavion Park Picnic Shelter 

 

• Sierra Recreation Center rehabilitation 

o Facility signage 

o Paint facility 

o Playground shade structure 

o Pool equipment replacement 

o Pool and spa re-plaster 

o Replace tennis court fencing 

o Reposition wall near spa 

o Restroom and locker room 

renovation 

o Restroom door replacement 

o Wood trim repair and paint 

 

• World Cup Soccer Center 

o Replace parking lot lights 

While staff does not have current estimates to complete all the projects listed above, based on 

previous reviews we can reasonably estimate that it would cost no less than $6 million to complete 

all the above listed projects.  The Community Services Commission should solely base their 

prioritization on public need and benefit and not the project cost. 

Page 4 of 35Item# 10.



EXHIBIT B 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Community Services Commission Agenda                 -1-                                           March 19, 2019 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 

7   

 

 

 

CITY OF MISSION VIEJO 

 

Meeting of the  

COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMISSION 

3/19/2019 6:00:00 PM 

 

AGENDA 

 

Council Chamber 

200 Civic Center 
 

 

CALL TO ORDER 3/19/2019 6:00:00 PM 

    Council Chamber  

 

    

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Vice Chairperson Avery 
 

 

ROLL CALL 
Present:  Chairperson Smith 

Vice Chairperson Avery 

Commissioner Allen 

Commissioner Magill 

Commissioner Ruesch 

Commissioner Spillman 

Commissioner Voss 

 

Absent:  None 

 

 

STAFF PRESENT Mark Nix, Director of Recreation and Community Services 

    Genesis Hansen, Director of Recreation and Community Services 

Drew Fine, Community Services Manager 

    Kaitlyn Luxton, Administrative Assistant  

Dennis Wilberg, City Manager     
Keith Rattay, Assistant City Manager/Director of Public Services 

    Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services 
 

Page 5 of 35Item# 10.



EXHIBIT B 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Community Services Commission Agenda                 -2-                                           March 19, 2019 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

Public Comments were heard from the following individuals: 

 

Michael Ojeda in favor of renovating the Montanoso lockers and correcting drainage issues. 

 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

1 Mission Viejo Community Services Commission Meeting Minutes 

  

Recommended Action:  Approve the Minutes of the regular Community Services 

Commission Meeting of February 19, 2019 as presented or amended. 

 

2 SVUSD Recreation and Community Services Monthly Report 

  

Recommended Action:  Receive and file. 

 

3 Recreation and Tennis Centers Monthly Report 

  

Recommended Action:  Receive and file. 

 

4 Community & Senior Center Monthly Report 

  

Recommended Action:  Receive and file. 

 

5 Library Services Monthly Report 

  

Recommended Action:  Receive and file. 

 

6 Community of Character Committee Applications 

  

Recommended Action:  Approve applications for membership for Dehnke and Scrimsher. 

 

Motion made by Commissioner Allen, seconded by Commissioner Ruesch to approve the Consent 

Calendar. 

 

On roll call, said motion carried by the following vote: 

 

AYES:         Allen, Avery, Magill, Ruesch, Smith, Spillman, Voss 

NOES:         None 

ABSENT:    None 

ABSTAIN:  None 
 

 

ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

 

 

Page 6 of 35Item# 10.



EXHIBIT B 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Community Services Commission Agenda                 -3-                                           March 19, 2019 

DIRECTOR'S REPORT 
 

7 Library and Cultural Services Update 

  

Recommended Action:  Receive and file. 

 

Genesis Hansen presented the report. 

 

8 Recreation and Community Services Update 

  

Recommended Action:  Receive and file. 

 

Mark Nix presented the report. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

9 Saddleback Valley Unified School District Youth Services Contract 2019-2021 

  

Recommended Action:  Recommend to City Council to approve the youth services contract 

with the Saddleback Valley Unified School District (SVUSD) in the amount of $930,108 in 

FY 2019-2020 and $991,538 in 2020-2021. 

 

Motion made by Commissioner Voss, seconded by Vice Chairperson Avery to recommend to City 

Council to approve the youth services contract with the Saddleback Valley Unified School District. 

 

On roll call, said motion carried by the following vote: 

 

AYES:         Allen, Avery, Magill, Ruesch, Smith, Spillman, Voss 

NOES:         None 

ABSENT:    None 

ABSTAIN:  None 
 

Motion made by Commissioner Magill, seconded by Commissioner Allen to recommend to City 

Council to approve the increase in program fees as follows: School Year fees $65 increase to $80; 

Summer fees $50 increase to $60. 

 

On roll call, said motion carried by the following vote: 

 

AYES:         Allen, Avery, Magill, Ruesch, Smith, Spillman, Voss 

NOES:         None 

ABSENT:    None 

ABSTAIN:  None 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 7 of 35Item# 10.



EXHIBIT B 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Community Services Commission Agenda                 -4-                                           March 19, 2019 

OLD BUSINESS 
 

10 Capital Improvement Program Prioritization 

  

Recommended Action:  Approve and recommend to City Council a prioritized Capital 

Improvement Projects listing. 

 

The following individuals addressed the Commission: 

 

Nino Fiorentino in favor of additional Bocce courts. 

Michelle Julian in favor of Craycraft Park and parking lot renovations. 

Erica Kang in favor of Craycraft Park and parking lot renovations. 

Chris Welsh in favor of Craycraft Park and parking lot renovations, but recommended removing the 

addition of scoreboards as they are not as important as the snack bar and restroom remodeling needs. 

Cienna Pugmire in favor of Craycraft Park and parking lot renovations. 

Garrett Mitton in favor of Marty Russo Youth Athletic Park renovations. 

Anna T. Boyce in favor of additional Bocce courts.  

Hazel Johnson in favor of Craycraft Park and parking lot renovations. 

Kraig Erickson in favor of adding a playground to La Mancha Park. 

Judy Bullockus left comments for Vice Chairperson Avery to read, asking the Commission to focus on 

the Capital Improvement Projects based on need from our community and infrastructure, prioritizing the 

City facilities first. 

 

Motion made by Commissioner Allen to approve the CIP list as prioritized by the Community Services 

Commission and recommend their CIP prioritization to City Council. 

 

Motion amended by Commissioner Voss, seconded by Commissioner Ruesch to approve the CIP list as 

prioritized by the Community Services Commission with the recommendation to remove Craycraft 

scoreboard and La Paws Dog Park card readers, and further recommend to make the prioritization a 

multi-year plan.  

 

On roll call, said motion carried by the following vote: 

 

AYES:         Allen, Avery, Magill, Ruesch, Smith, Spillman, Voss 

NOES:         None 

ABSENT:    None 

ABSTAIN:  None 
 

COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 
 

COMMISSIONER ALLEN 
 

Commissioner Allen attended the Potocki art exhibit by Marilyn Brame. She also enjoyed Writers 

Present with Alan Brennert. Commissioner Allen also attended and enjoyed the Irish Festival put on by 

the Mission Viejo Activities Committee. 

 

 

 

Page 8 of 35Item# 10.



EXHIBIT B 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Community Services Commission Agenda                 -5-                                           March 19, 2019 

VICE CHAIRPERSON AVERY 
 

Vice Chairperson Avery thanked all the speakers that attended the meeting stating their comments really 

do make a difference. She is looking forward to the California Park and Recreation Society conference, 

and ended her comments by saying parks make life great. 

 

COMMISSIONER MAGILL 
 

Commissioner Magill thanked the speakers for attending, especially the young girls from Mission Viejo 

Girls Softball that spoke, mentioning it takes courage at that age to do that. He also thanked the 

Commission for putting in time and effort to prioritize the Capital Improvement Projects and felt they 

came up with a great consensus. 

 

COMMISSIONER RUESCH 
 

Commissioner Ruesch toured the Library with Genesis, which was informative and educational. She 

also toured the Potocki Center for the Arts to see how much it has changed and improved in the last 5 

years since she was last asked for input. Commissioner Ruesch said it has come a long way with kids’ 

programs and art classes. She thanked Genesis and her team and concluded her comments by saying she 

loves our town.  

 

CHAIRPERSON SMITH 
 

Chairperson Smith attended the Oso Fit 5K Fun Run and Community Health Fair and even helped start 

the race. She attended the Marine Adoption Committee’s Wine Tasting Music fundraiser. Chairperson 

Smith also attended Writers Present with Alan Brennert, the Irish Festival, and Friends of the Library’s 

event with author Gretchen Ruby where she helped by serving wine to VIPs. Chairperson Smith is 

looking forward to the California Park and Recreation Conference.   

 

COMMISSIONER SPILLMAN 
 

Commissioner Spillman stated there is an effort being made to create an outreach program to reach 

citizens about Bocce. It would involve reaching out to dozens of organizations within the City. He is 

disappointed that thousands of residents want to be active and engage with each other, but we do not 

have the facilities to do so. 

 

COMMISSIONER VOSS 
 

Commissioner Voss thanked everyone for coming to the meeting. He is curious to see what Council 

does with the Commission’s recommendation. Commissioner Voss concluded by stating he loves 

Mission Viejo and “Parks Make Life Better.”  

Page 9 of 35Item# 10.



EXHIBIT B 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Community Services Commission Agenda                 -6-                                           March 19, 2019 

ADJOURNMENT  

 

At the hour of 7:37 p.m., there being no further business to come before the Commission, Chairperson 

Smith adjourned the meeting to the next regular scheduled meeting on Tuesday, April 16, 2019 at 6:00 

p.m. 

 

            

     Kaitlyn Luxton 

Community Services Commission Secretary  

      Recreation and Community Services  

Page 10 of 35Item# 10.



EXHIBIT C 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT PRIORITIZATION 

RESIDENT FEEDBACK 

 

MULTIPLE FACILITIES / PROJECTS 

RESIDENT: Taig Higgins 
COMMENT:  

Please include improvements in the City's CIP list:  

Montanoso Recreation Center- pool equipment replacement; pool, spa, deck, outdoor shower, patio, 
lighting, signage and window improvements  

Felipe Tennis Center- community building and fencing 

Sierra Recreation Center - pool equipment replacement; pool, spa, restroom and locker room 
improvements. Thanks for your consideration. 

 

RESIDENT: Bart Keuning 

COMMENT:  

My wife and I frequent the Sierra and Montanoso recreation centers and enjoy the amenities offered to 

the residents of Mission Viejo. We realize that the Sierra facility seems to attract the more "Mature" 

crowd (not sure if it was intended that way) and the workout equipment seems to reflect that. Is it 

possible to supplement the dumbbell sets with additional Free Weights and bars? I understand that 

space is at a premium at Sierra so maybe it is time to expand the facility into the underutilized grassy 

area. 

 

RESIDENT: Tony and Cora Jackson  
COMMENT: 
Montanoso and Sierra Recreation Fitness Center has been my second home for 47 years. In that time 
they have aged and are again in need of some tender loving care.  
 
Maintenance is always mandatory to protect your investment. PAY NOW OR PAY MORE LATER! 
With Montanoso pool closed almost every week for repairs, it is time to put some money into the pool 

equipment and protecting M V's future.  

Thank you for your consideration. 

 

RESIDENT: Nick Hoffman and Faith Lawson 

COMMENT: 

We are long time members of Montanoso and La Sierra. We love working out there and are proud that 

Page 11 of 35Item# 10.



EXHIBIT C 

Mission Viejo has their own gyms! We hope that the facilities can be maintained and even upgraded to 

keep them in excellent condition and up to date with current trends. 

Thank you for your consideration of these requests. 

 
 
RESIDENT: Carol and Harry Hafer 
COMMENT: 
I understand that the City Council is considering funding improvements for the Recreation Centers. We 
would like to add are names in support of such funding! 
 
My wife and I are longtime residents of Mission Viejo (1970) and we’ve used the Sierra Center over the 
years as are children grew up and grandchildren. In the last several years as senior citizens we’ve been 
using the Sierra Center regularly (and on occasion Montanoso when there are scheduling conflicts).  
 
We are most familiar with the Sierra Center and consider it a wonderful asset provided by the City. We 
primarily use the fitness center and it is ideally suited for our needs and many of the patrons we see 
there have expressed the same feelings. The staff is first rate and the center is well maintained. There 
are several exercise machines that are perfect for us seniors. The fitness area is light and airy - kudos to 
the use of windows, etc. from the remodel, but could probably use some brightening up with lighter 
paint and new floor. Since it is 15 or so years since the remodel, some of the equipment and the facility 
is showing the wear and tear you’d expect and I suspect there are many things that could be done to 
make it better.  
 
That said, we don’t have any specific recommendations (maybe an additional recumbent bike?) but are 
confident that Mark and his staff (specially the Sierra staff) would know where facility improvements 
and what machine upgrades or replacements should be made. So we encourage the Council to seriously 
consider funding that will not only maintain a wonderful asset but improve it for the benefit of not only 
us seniors but all Mission Viejo residents. 

 

 
RESIDENT: Dennis Ramsey 
COMMENT: 
I read your information sheet regarding proposed capital improvement projects for certain city parks 

and facilities.  I would like to know if this is the entire list or if there is room for suggestions from the 

public.  If so, I recommend the following: 

1. Montanoso Rec Center – Repaint entire interior walls; clean windows; replace/update workout 
equipment. 

2. Sierra Rec Center – Replace/update workout equipment. 
3. Pacific Hills Park – Replace playground equipment.  The current equipment is extremely 

outdated and, in some instances, unsafe, offers unimaginative (boring!) play options and is 
probably why this park is underutilized by neighborhood families, especially when compared 
with other Mission Viejo neighborhood parks (e.g., the recently revamped Cordova Park).  The 
park is over 20 years old and, to my knowledge, has never been updated since it was opened (I 
have lived in my Pacific Hills home since 1994; the park opened shortly thereafter).  I was 
previously told that the best Pacific Hills homeowners (and taxpayers!) can hope for is hand-me-

Page 12 of 35Item# 10.



EXHIBIT C 

down play equipment from other city parks as they are revamped, but I don’t even see that 
occurring at our neighborhood’s park.  I am attaching two photos of play equipment at the 
Laguna Niguel Community Park for your review. 

 

I appreciate your attention to my input and welcome your response. 

 

RESIDENT: Tom Giffin and Debbie Kilpatrick 
COMMENT: 
I congratulate on seeking community input in the prioritization of the 12 proposed Capital Improvement 

Projects for the City of Mission Viejo.  My personal preference would be the Montanoso Rec 

Rehabilitation followed by the Sierra Rec Rehabilitation.   

There are certain needs which do not need prioritization, that being the maintenance of the existing 

recreation centers.  In particular, I would like to address the continuing issues with the showers in both 

the men’s and women’s locker rooms at the Montanoso Rec Center.  Since the poorly designed and 

constructed 2014 renovation/expansion of the locker rooms/restrooms at Montanoso, something as 

simple as the delivery of hot water to the showers has been a daunting challenge.  There are 5 showers 

each in the men’s and women’s shower areas and 4 tankless water heaters, hooked up in series, to 

deliver hot water to the 10 shower stalls.  To my knowledge, only 1 of the 4 tankless water heaters has 

ever been working and, as a result, the water temperature in the showers ranges from iceberg cold to 

tepid, and on very rare occasions, hot.   

And speaking of the shower stalls, with the exception of the handicapped stalls, all the stalls are 

absolutely claustrophobic, leaving little room to maneuver and dress.  Why dress in the shower 

stall?  Because there is NO BENCH SPACE in either locker room.  And from the women’s locker room 

perspective – 1 hair dryer and very limited mirror space?  Really?  I’ve been told it’s like trying to put on 

your makeup inside a clown car.  My wife, Debora Kilpatrick, recently suffered a major traumatic injury 

and found the women’s locker room to be an unfriendly and unaccommodating environment during her 

long recovery period.  With all the classes promoted by the recreation center, this has caused the 

women’s locker room has become over-crowded at peak times in the mornings as women jostle for 

mirror, shower, and bench positions. 

Page 13 of 35Item# 10.



EXHIBIT C 

Along with the water temperature of the showers and the poor design of the shower stalls and locker 

rooms in particular, there is the safety issue of the poorly designed floor drains in the shower 

areas.  Excess water commonly pools in areas of the shower rooms with high traffic, exposing the City to 

liability issues with member slip-and-trip incidents.  Often the driest area in the shower rooms is the 

area immediately around the floor drains. 

Before the City engages in the proposed Capital Improvement Projects, I would suggest the above 

enumerated concerns be addressed first.  

 
RESIDENT: Sam Afshar 
COMMENT: 
Hi Kaitlyn and Mark,  
 
Thanks for additional clarification on the projects today. I have the most familiarity with Montanoso and 
Sierra or over the last three decades, and was happy to see a comprehensive list. 
 
My request/input for consideration is for the prioritization process to includes the following: 
 
1) Cost benefit analysis ROI to help best allocate city resources. For the proposed projects, and any other 
preventative projects that are on road map. 
 
2) Health safety prioritization as a relates to the Pool Jacuzzi and showers. We have an opportunity to 
mitigate current risks. 
 
3) Business case to include opportunity in reducing reoccurring support, maintenance and service. 

 

 

SHADE STRUCTURES – VARIOUS PARKS 

No comments submitted. 

 

PAVION PARK 

COMMENT FROM STAFF: 

We received 10 emails and over 50 phone calls this past year with requests to reserve Pavion Park as a 

private rental. 

 

WILLIAM S. CRAYCRAFT PARK 

RESIDENT: Michelle Julian 

COMMENT: 

My name is Michelle Julian and I am currently serving as the President of Mission Viejo Girls Softball 

(MVGS).  We are so grateful for the amazing fields we get to use at William S. Craycraft Park. We are so 

Page 14 of 35Item# 10.



EXHIBIT C 

appreciative of the way the city maintains the fields and how supportive they have been with Mission 

Viejo Girls Softball. William S. Craycraft has really offered a great “home” for so many girls to get 

involved with softball and enjoy youth sports.  

There are a few challenges however that I would like to bring to your attention. The first is the parking 

situation. We are very limited on spaces with only about 85 spaces for parking in the lot and about 20 of 

those spots are already taken up by ride share vehicles. During the seasons, the ride share people do not 

seem very happy when people are lingering and waiting for their spots. It makes it difficult for them to 

get the vehicles parked or back into their own cars. When we have games at the park, we do stagger the 

start times, but that does very little to alleviate the parking issue.  We will have approximately 160 girls 

at the fields at a time, which means about 275 to 300 parents and about 180 cars plus the 20 cars in 

rideshare.  We are really short on parking.  In addition, we only have 4 handicap spaces available and 

with so many grandparents coming to watch granddaughters play those fill up pretty quickly. We do 

have street parking around, however that impacts the nearby businesses and residences. In addition, 

the short parking lot has no area to turn around. If you pull in on a busy day only to find that there is no 

parking, it is very difficult to turn around.  

The other main issue is the snack bar and bathrooms.  During weekend games and tournaments, the 

snack bar is a little small and the bathrooms don’t have enough stalls and frequently get clogged.  We 

currently order porta-potties for any weekend when we expect a larger crowd to help alleviate the 

bathroom issues.  As you can imagine, little girls won’t often use the porta-potties which causes even 

more of a wait at the bathrooms. We also share the snack bar with High School or travel teams when 

they have tournaments and have clean our items out.  With more space and some additional cabinets, 

we would be able to just pack our items away until they were done with the facility and make it more 

workable for everybody. I think this would draw more interest in travel teams wanting to rent the 

facilities for their tournaments. We often have families coming from surrounding areas and you would 

be surprised to hear how many people remember a park based upon a nice snack bar!  

My last item is scoreboards, we often are asked why we don’t have scoreboards. We have many families 

that participate in Little League and want to know why we don’t also have scoreboards. We have 

brainstormed for some time about different ideas on how we can help make this happen. Offering some 

advertisement on the scoreboards has often been discussed as a source of revenue. I think this would 

also be a great addition to the park.  

Thank you again for taking the time to hear us and we hope you will consider these items. We really 

appreciate the partnership we have with the City of Mission Viejo and want to do our best to help 

represent the city of Mission Viejo the best we can.  

In closing, I just want to reiterate how much we appreciate the support of everyone at the city.  We view 

our relationship as a partnership and want to help promote and support the city of Mission Viejo as 

much as you support MVGS.  

RESIDENT: Amy Ciftcikara 

COMMENT: 
My name is Amy Ciftcikara and I am a Mission Viejo resident. In addition, we have just moved our office 

to the city of Mission Viejo after being in Laguna Hills for nineteen years and couldn’t be more thrilled. 

We absolutely LOVE this city and the support it gives its residents.  

Page 15 of 35Item# 10.



EXHIBIT C 

I am writing specifically regarding Craycraft Park. I grew up playing softball in the ‘80’s and ‘90’s at 
“Alicia Fields” and am aware of how fortunate our youth girls were, and still are, to play at those fields. 
Even when playing in college I remember coming back “home” and playing at these fields.  Craycraft is 
hands down the best facility in the area. My ten-year-old daughter has played with Mission Viejo Girls 
Softball (MVGS) since the Fall of 2016 and has loved every minute of it. She plays during the Fall, Spring 
and Allstar seasons, basically year-round. Craycraft is our second home. This is VERY convenient for us as 
we live just above the fields on Via Galicia. The Saturday 8am call time isn’t so bad for us as we can walk 
down the street to the fields. 

I wanted to bring up a few challenges with the facilities in hopes that some improvements may be 
considered. 

Parking – The parking lot is extremely tight. If the surrounding businesses would open up their lots, 
especially on weekends, this would alleviate the parking situation. There are also ride share vehicles 
parked in the lot that take up spots. Any chance the ride share vehicles can park somewhere close? The 
Target parking lot off of Jeronimo is never filled. Just a thought. Our neighbors closer to the fields get a 
little testy with cars parked on Via Logrono. And this is understandable. More parking for Craycraft 
events would be ideal. 

Bathrooms – The bathrooms are always having issues. They often times get backed up, and with the 
amount of people at the field on the weekdays and weekend days, the line is long. I know MVGS pays 
for portable bathrooms for some weekends and for tournaments, but it would be amazing to have more 
updated and working stalls in each of the bathrooms. 

Snack Bar – Our Snack Bar rep from MVGS has done an amazing job. MVGS families all volunteer for 
shifts so that the families can have access to snacks and drinks while at Craycraft. The unfortunate part 
is that because MVGS is not the only host for softball. When the host is an entity other than MVGS all of 
the drinks, snacks, equipment, supplies have to be moved somewhere. This is an extremely burdensome 
job for our Snack Bar rep. If there were cabinets or other storage then each host would be able to store 
these items without having to move them each time. 

Scoreboards – It would be AMAZING to get scoreboards for the girls. When I see MV baseball fields with 
the scoreboards I wonder why those fields and not Craycraft? Scoreboards would be a fabulous addition 
to Craycraft. 

Thank you for taking the time to read through my email. We truly appreciate all of the support you and 
the city of Mission Viejo gives to MVGS! If you have any questions please feel free to contact me. 

Have a wonderful weekend! 

RESIDENT: Dan and Karen Mitchell 

COMMENT: 

It is my understanding that there is an upcoming City Council meeting where there will be a discussion of 

possible upgrades to Craycraft Park.  My daughter played softball there for 5 years and we loved the 

beautiful, well maintained fields that she was able to play on.  Now that she is in high school, we really 

appreciate how good those fields are compared to the high school fields.  There is always a need for 

improvement though and I remember often having to hike down and then up to the fields from several 

Page 16 of 35Item# 10.



EXHIBIT C 

of the neighboring streets as the parking lots would be filled.  A lot of the neighborhoods did not like us 

to park there but there was no other place to park to watch our girls play.  More parking spaces would 

be a great thing for this park.  Also, there were only 2 stalls in the women’s bathroom and with all those 

girls playing softball in the park, it didn’t seem to be nearly enough.  Often the girls need to go quickly 

between innings and cannot wait in a long line.  Nicer and more bathrooms would definitely be a benefit 

to the park. One other thing I have observed in other softball fields and baseball fields is that they often 

have electronic scoreboards.  So often during the game it is easy to lose track of the score.  It would be 

awesome to have a scoreboard on at least some of the fields so that we would be on an even par with 

what the boy’s fields have. I appreciate your consideration in possible funding for these items.  The park 

is so nice to have close by for the girls to play.  These things will only make the park better and easier for 

the girls and their parents. 

 
RESIDENT: Shelli Mire 
COMMENT: 
Hello, my daughters have enjoyed the usage of the Craycraft Park to play softball for many years, we 
would greatly appreciate your consideration in helping to improve the parking as well as the bathrooms. 
When we have tournaments and every Saturday regular scheduled games it is very congested and 
limited parking. The restrooms tend to back up and the ladies restroom tends to get clogged.  
We would greatly appreciate your consideration in renovating the park for better use age for the 
community.  
 

RESIDENT: Gladis Hayes 

COMMENT: 

Thank you for your reply.  Unfortunately it does not really help.  There is nothing I can do about the 

carpool situation.  I spoke to someone who deals with the carpooling at CALTRANS.  They informed me 

that the city of Mission Viejo and CALTRANS has an agreement of exactly 40 spaces on the right side 

parking lot, the smaller parking lot section only allowed for carpooling.  They informed me that if the 

carpoolers are in violation of that agreement, the city is supposed to address it.  There are more than 40 

vehicles there, and they take up spaces on both of the parking lot sections.  I was told by CALTRANS to 

make the Parks department and or the City aware of the situation as only they can help with facilitating 

parking locations.  I don't understand why this park that is #3 on the list to increase parking due to 

necessity issues is allowing carpool parking when its already so highly impacted for softball field use.  As 

I was informed, this was done by the city with CALTRANS.  Isn't there anything that can be done by the 

city to find a less used parking lot?  This is the only softball field in Mission Viejo and the only park in 

Mission Viejo to also accommodate carpool.    

So, here is our weekend...This past weekend, May 19,20 & 21, there was a tournament.  Friday night 

games ended at 845pm per the softball schedule.  There was no parking on our street.  I had to block my 

driveway to park one of my cars.  Half of our street was impacted by softball player parking.  Saturday 

morning and Sunday it starts before 630am even though park hours start at 7am.  The softball teams are 

loud, screaming their warm up counts and it travels as if they were in front of our windows. This is a 

weekend alarm we can all do without.  So we start our weekends waking at 630am by force, then no 

parking for residents unless we left our cars out and didn't leave our homes. We have no space for our 

visitors all day on weekends. All this happens along with the congestion of the volleyball court users and 

Page 17 of 35Item# 10.



EXHIBIT C 

parking taken up by vanpool and carpool. It's very disruptive to our street. 

 

As you can tell, this routine is not accommodating to the residents who buy or rent the homes and 

actually live there.  It accommodates the softball field and volleyball court users, and carpoolers.  There 

is not much we can do except ask for your help at the parks and city departments.  We personally 

cannot enforce anything. If we call and complain enough to the police department, that becomes an 

issue too. The last time a few neighbors and I complained consistently over a short time period, we all 

ended up with fix-it tickets cited after midnight addressing minor issues, but the park users were left 

without consequence during the day.  We cannot facilitate contracts with CALTRANS, only the city 

can.  We cannot enforce use of park, only the city can. All we can do is ask for help.  Maybe even making 

our street parking permit during certain hours?   Please help. 

 

RESIDENT: Theresa Hause 

COMMENT: 

I Theresa M. Hause have been a resident of Mission Viejo since 1985. My daughters and now my 

granddaughters have played softball at this field for years. Lately while trying to get my grandchildren to 

and from practice the parking lot is totally congested. Mainly with carpoolers who drop their car in the 

lot and return between 4:30 – 6:30 pm, high children traffic time. 

On Saturday March 4, 2017 while not finding any parking for my granddaughters’ game, I noticed lots of 

Vanpool parked for the weekend. I photographed a sign in the entrance that reads: No Parking 11pm to 

7am. The following vans have been permanently parked since Friday night 3-3-2017: 

White Ford 7AOG725 VANPOOL.COM 

Silver Explorer 7SIZ807 VANPOOL.COM 

Grey T & C 7REU821 OCTA.NET/VANPOOL 

White Ford 6VRK211 OCTAVANPOOL.COM 

Grey Dodge 7WBG070 VANPOOL.COM 

White Dodge 7WBB347 VANPOOL.COM 

Black Traverse 7TWV116 VRIDE.COM 

White Chevy 7HHL008 VRIDE.COM 

With less than 100 parking spots… 4 fields of players, approx. 96 players. Needed parking for players, 

coaches, snack bar and umpires, approx. 200. With 8 Carpool Vans and at least 4-6 per van driving to the 

meeting point… 32-48 spots are already being taken.  

This is a parking nightmare without the Van Pools. As a resident of Mission Viejo for 30+ years, now 

trying to get my grandchildren to and from practices and games with a handicap placard, I ask that the 

parking of Van Pools stop at this location. Might I suggest the Alicia Target parking lot! 

I might also add that we pay fees to play MVGS and I’m sure that parking is/should be included with the 

use of the park. Please move ALL Vanpools to another location.  

On 3-8-17 at 3:30 in the afternoon there were 56 cars in the parking lot, one in handicap and 2 coaches 

and 3 children present. The last Vanpool pulled in at 6:30pm as our game was ending with 5 people in 

the van. 

Page 18 of 35Item# 10.



EXHIBIT C 

 
RESIDENT: Orange County Islamic Foundation (23581 Madero Drive) 
COMMENT: 
It is heartening to know that the City of Mission Viejo is considering several Capital Improvement 
Projects (CIP) throughout the city and make it more beautiful, attractive, convenient, accessible, 
comfortable, and enjoyable for the residents of the city. Thank you.  
In particular we noted the improvements being considered to William S. Craycraft (WSC) Park. It would 
greatly help renovate the restrooms & snack bar. I would like to bring two items to the attention of the 
Commission: 1) evaluate the adequacy / placement of lighting for night games / activities, 2) lack of 
parking spaces, and 3) traffic speeding in the vicinity of the Park.  
1) The lighting may or may not be adequate on the fields (we are not experts and are not suggesting 
anything here); however, we noticed that the lighting in the parking lot may not be adequate. We simply 
suggest evaluating parking lot lighting as well as lighting at crosswalks.  

2) We have noticed that when there are games / activities in the park, not only the parking lot is full but 
most of the street parking nearby is taken. People walk quite a distance from their vehicles to the park. 
Occasionally OCIF has classes / seminars in the evening and the attendees spill over on the street. There 
is definitely a need to expand parking spaces in the park. Please note that OCIF attendees use the WSC 
parking lot on Friday afternoon between 12:30Pm through 2:30PM. Occasionally on weekend mornings 
our parents use these parking spaces as well. OCIF has advised people to not park their vehicles in WSC 
park if games are in progress. In addition, please note that there are times when there is nobody at 
OCIF, people attending a game / event at the WSC Park will park in OCIF parking, a gesture OCIF is happy 
to extend.  

3) There is not ample lighting on the streets around the WSC Park. Families walk from their vehicles to 
the park and / or OCIF and invariably they have to cross a street (Madero or Via Linda). They have 
children with them. There is dim lighting at cross walks. The vehicles along Via Linda travel at speeds 
much higher than they should which causes dangerous situation. We have witnessed accidents about to 
happen few times, thank God it didn’t. We strongly suggest evaluation and installation of speed 
reduction measures at three cross walks at the intersection of Via Linda and Madero.  
 
OCIF is very appreciative of this opportunity to provide input. We care for the community we live in and 

we appreciate all the City of Mission Viejo does for its residents. 

 

 

RESIDENT: Valerie and John with High Park Tap House 

COMMENT: 
We are very much in favor of expanding parking availability at Craycraft Park. Often when there is 

activity in the park, the overflow parking ends up in our lot. When people drive by to visit our restaurant 

and see the lot full, they assume our restaurant is packed and they move on to another restaurant. As a 

result, we lose business. When there are tournaments in the park we have to hire a private security 

company to monitor our parking lot to prevent park participants from using it as overflow parking. We 

understand they are just trying to get to their programmed activity; however, they do sometimes 

become confrontational when we try to educate them on why we need to reserve our parking spaces. 

We are also aware of the parking needs from our neighboring mosque. When they host religious 

services they often need overflow parking, which frequently impacts our facility. By having additional 

parking at Craycraft Park, it would alleviate much of the adjacent parking problems. 

Page 19 of 35Item# 10.



EXHIBIT C 

 

 

RESIDENT: David Connally 
COMMENT: 
We spend a lot of weekends at Alicia Park watching our grandkids play softball. 
 
This park is packed on weekends, but: 
 
-There is only a single bathroom for each gender, with two stalls for women and one for men. More or 
expanded facilities are needed. 
 
-Parking is always difficult due to limited spaces. Parked cars snake up the adjacent streets, but the High 
Park Taphouse lot directly across Via Linda doesn't allow outside parking, and I've heard people say they 
were ticketed or towed there. My wife uses a walker or wheelchair and only limited handicapped 
parking spaces are available at Alicia Park. Even dropping her off to park offsite is difficult as the existing 
lot is very narrow and a drop-off snarls traffic. I know that finding additional space for parking would be 
a challenge, but it is sorely needed. 
 
-This past weekend several valuable parking spots in the lot were taken up the entire weekend by 
vanpool vehicles that are left over the weekend in the lot. Parking is so limited at the park that these 
spots cannot be sacrificed through the weekend for these vehicles not being used. 
 
Thank you for your attention to these matters. 

 

 

FELIPE TENNIS & RECREATION CENTER 

RESIDENT: Toni Hayes 

COMMENT: 

I understand the city is looking at dedicating some funds to improving the recreation centers. There are 

a few things at the Felipe facility I think would benefit from an upgrade.  First, the lights could be 

upgraded.  That would improve the quality of light for players, it can be difficult to follow the ball and 

see the lines on the court under the current lighting system.  As a bonus it would be a more efficient use 

of electricity. 

Replacing the small covered area would be a big improvement; it is pretty small at this point.  We need a 

bigger space. Secondly, it would enable us to use it during cold or rainy weather.  The current covered 

area is really not practical in a lot of weather.  The best solution would be to replace the small covered 

area with a permanent building that can be used year-round, both night and day.  It would be much 

more practical and useful. 

I hope the commission considers some of the suggestions. 

 

Page 20 of 35Item# 10.



EXHIBIT C 

RESIDENT: Greg Hogan 

COMMENT: 

I would like to express my strong support for the proposed improvements to the Felipe Tennis and 
Recreation Center, specifically: 

1. New fencing 
2. Construction of a community room and club house 
3. LED lighting 

These renovations would not only modernize the facility, but would also greatly enhance the enjoyment 
and usage of the facility by the members of our community. 

Also, in my opinion as well as that of many tennis players, it is equally urgent that the tennis courts be 
resurfaced. The courts are in terrible shape and should be brought up to the standards of the 
Marguerite Tennis Center and the Sierra/Montanoso Recreation Centers.  

Collectively these long neglected improvements would create the facility our community desires and 
deserves. 

 

RESIDENT: Dale Babb 

COMMENT: 

Our volleyball group is aware that council is considering upgrades to several facilities. We are number 

one extremely happy that we have an opportunity to play Volleyball at Felipe. Second we appreciate the 

upgrades to the facility that occurred last summer. We would like to advocate for improved lighting and 

the possibility of having a structure that could be used to gather in especially with the recent inclement 

weather. 

 

RESIDENT: Dennis Leong  

COMMENT: 
I understand that the fencing around Felipe Tennis Center is need of work.  In the short time I've been 

playing pickleball at the center, I have had instances where the ball had gone under the fence.  Once, I 

recall that when I went to pick it up, it was no longer there.  Fortunately, Dennis found it and took it 

inside. I hope that the fencing can be updated soon. 

 

RESIDENT: Wayne Iba  

COMMENT: 

Hello –  

I just wanted to drop a line to say how beautiful the Felipe Tennis and Recreation Center has become! 
I've been playing with the various Volleyball groups for about 5 years now. It's enjoyable knowing we 
have a court(s) we can reserve and not have to fight over or wait for. Especially when there are relatively 
few courts with lights within the neighboring cities. Thank you so much for the beautiful upgrades! 
 

Page 21 of 35Item# 10.



EXHIBIT C 

Not to look a gift horse in the mouth, but I can hardly wait for the 2nd Community Building area to be 
completed, as it's nice to sit back and relax after our evening games...but would be even nicer to have it 
enclosed for the cooler winter months.  
 
Again, my thanks to the Community Services Commission, the Recreation & Community Services 
Department, and the many others responsible for the improvements! 
 
 
RESIDENT: Tom Tillotson 
COMMENT: 
I want to thank the City of Mission Viejo for its support of Pickleball.  It’s been rewarding to see the 
growth and the increased popularity of the sport under the direction of Amanda Bassett.  Amanda is a 
tireless advocate for the support and the players she directs.   
 
From a constructive perspective it would be great to see dual use tennis/pickleball courts converted to 
exclusive Pickleball Courts.  This would improve the layout, design, and functionality of the Courts as 
well as provide increased safety and utilization.  I’d also suggest that lightning on the Felipe Courts be 
improved as scours coverage is inadequate and inconsistent. 
 
Again, we appreciate all that the city and Amanda has done to promote Pickleball. 

 

 

LAKESIDE PARK 

No comments submitted. 

 

LAKE LOOP CONNECTIVITY 

No comments submitted. 

 

LA MANCHA PARK 

RESIDENT: Agnes & Kraig Erickson 

COMMENT: 

I am writing to you to for City Council consideration of play equipment at La Mancha Park. 

We have been in coordinating with Mr. Keith Rattay since July 2017 who has been very helpful. We 

understand the City is just in the beginning phases of developing the budget for the next fiscal year and 

there will be many competing requests that the City Council will need to consider. We ask that the 

Council review and consider the needs for La Mancha Park for the upcoming budget cycle. We 

understand that playgrounds cost money as well as maintenance and ADA compliance. 

Of the 40+ parks in the City, La Mancha is the only park without a playground or other dedicated service 

(soccer, trail, etc.). We find ourselves needing to drive to other parks to utilize the play equipment and 

can only assume that many others must do the same. La Mancha Park borders 3 HOA communities: La 

Mancha, Mission Ridge and Baja Oso. The Park is also within 1/4-mile of 3 large apartment communities: 

Page 22 of 35Item# 10.



EXHIBIT C 

Sunrise Senior Living, Heritage Villas Senior Apartments, and Adagio on the Green Apartments. 

Improvements to La Mancha Park would greatly serve these 6 communities. With the large number of 

multi-family housing in that vicinity and the new apartment complex on Oso, there is a need for a 

playground nearby. Tract 320.13 has the numerous multi-family residences in La Mancha as well as the 

noted apartment communities (senior living) which would have considerably lower average household 

income. Our goal is to get play-equipment installed at La Mancha Park so these families do not need to 

drive to other parks. 

Per discussions, with Mr. Rattay, La Mancha Park has typically not been considered due to steep slopes 

all around the park and ADA compliance improvements required. We recently visited Davis Park that is 

of similar size & make-up with steep-slopes all around and only 1-point of entry with a very long ADA 

ramp-up to the park. La Mancha Park is just under 4 acres with slopes and over 2 acres of usable flat 

surface. I would like to think that the size of a park site does not limit its value and importance to the 

local communities that use it. Other parks in the City of similar size under 3 acres of usable space include 

Barbadnes Park, Granada Park, Marid Fore Park, and Minaya Park. These parks all have playgrounds with 

the average playground size with pavement of approximately less than ½-acre. 

Please let me know what we can do to drum-up support for the project. Thank you. 

 

RESIDENT: Kraig Erickson 

COMMENT: 

I recently attended the City Council meeting earlier this week to request the Council consider installation 

of play equipment at La Mancha Park. I understand the Community Services Commission will be 

removing a list of potential CIPs and prioritizing for funding. 

I do plan to attend the next Commission meeting on Tuesday, 2/19, at 6pm to make my case for La 

Mancha Park improvements. 

For your information, of the 48+ parks in the City, La Mancha is the only park without a playground or 

other dedicated service (ballfields, walking trails, wilderness, etc.). We find ourselves needing to drive to 

other parks to utilize the play equipment and can only assume that many others must do the same. La 

Mancha Park borders 3 communities: La Mancha, Mission Ridge and Baja Oso. The Park is also within 

1/4-mile of 3 large apartment communities: Sunrise Senior Living, Heritage Villas Senior Apartments, 

and Adagio on the Green Apartments. Improvements to La Mancha Park would greatly serve these 6 

communities. With the large number of multi-family housing in that vicinity and the new apartment 

complex on Oso, there is a need for a playground nearby. Tract 320.13 has the numerous multi-family 

residences in La Mancha as well as the noted apartment communities (senior living) which would have 

considerably lower average household income and mobility to drive to other parks. Our goal is to get 

play-equipment installed at La Mancha Park so these families do not need to drive to other parks or 

cross the very busy Oso & Marguerite Parkways.  

La Mancha Park is just under 5 acres in size with slopes,but has over 2 acres of usable flat surface. I fully 

understand the high cost of the project (from planning, design, bid-construction, permitting, ADA 

compliance) and limitations on City funds, as well as restrictions for grant funding. We are simply asking 

the Commission consider the needs of La Mancha Park and the 6 communities is serves. 

Page 23 of 35Item# 10.



EXHIBIT C 

Please let me know what we can do to drum-up support for the project. Thank you. 

 

LA PAWS DOG PARK 

No comments submitted. 

 

MARTY RUSSO YOUTH ATHLETIC PARK 

RESIDENT: Tori Yokoyama 

COMMENT: 

My parents originally moved to Mission Viejo when I was 6-years old in 1986. We lived off of La Barca 

and I went to Deportola, then Los Alisos, then Trabuco. I grew up playing Little League baseball at YAP 

from when I was 6 through my senior year playing for Trabuco’s varsity baseball team. Now my wife and 

three boys live on Ladera Drive and my kids go to Deportola and play Little League for South Mission 

Viejo. It’s nothing short of special to see my boys playing baseball at the same field I grew up playing on.  

I’ve been the Chief Umpire on the Board at SMVLL for the last 3 years. It’s a lot of work, but I love giving 

back and contributing to a healthy little league experience for my boys and all the SMVLL families. We 

have a very special group of families and the community feeling that is created down at YAP is beyond 

what I remember experiencing even as a kid.   

I wanted to express my support for a couple things I’ve heard the City is considering. Adding lights to 

more YAP fields would greatly improve our league’s accessibility for families. With the high cost of living, 

most families have both parents working and it’s simply very difficult to get your child to practice and 

games, when they have to start by 4:00 or earlier in order to beat the setting sun. Another is bathrooms 

near the far end of the parking lot. Besides kids, we have a lot of parents and grandparents that enjoy 

coming to watch our games. The walk to the one bathroom from those far fields is quite a distance. So 

having another set on that end would add a big level of convenience for the fans and kids.  

And lastly, thank you so much for all you do for our league and our families. I wouldn’t want to be 

playing baseball anywhere else. There’s nothing better than a Saturday down at YAP seeing these kids 

making memories. We’re so grateful to be living in this community. Thanks again.  

 

RESIDENT: Dave Towers 

COMMENT: 

I'm writing on behalf of South Mission Viejo Little League, a community of 400+ families that uses Youth 

Athletic Park.  My 8 year old son sees it as the hub of his life - far beyond school, the lake or even 

Fortnite, which is HUGE. 

We're hoping to get lights on the field and restrooms on the opposite side of the park. It will keep our 

kids playing there and our families engaged.  We have hundreds of kids and parents using the facilities - 

I've never been in a community organization with the passion and fervor of little league, it's really 

amazing.  If you get the opportunity to support our cause, we'd really appreciate it!!! 

Thank you for your service to the MV community. 

Page 24 of 35Item# 10.



EXHIBIT C 

RESIDENT: Shannon Lechuga 

COMMENT: 

My name is Shannon Lechuga and I have been a resident of Mission Viejo since 2007.    My children are 

8 and 10 years old and both have been very active in the sports programs throughout the City since they 

were 4 years old. We really feel blessed to have a community like Mission Viejo to raise our two boys. 

One of those sports leagues is South Mission Viejo Little League (SMVLL).  SMVLL is an all-volunteer 

organization that has over 350 live scanned volunteers who live in Mission Viejo.  I feel that SMVLL 

creates a fun and safe environment for our kids to be kids and make lifelong friends. We have such a 

special community at SMVLL and it has really become a safe place for our kids to spend many days and 

evenings playing and watching baseball. SMVLL is a true community which sets itself apart from others 

with its Snack Bar and grotto area for all families to spend quality time.   

I understand that the Mission Viejo Community Services Commission is in due diligence on some 

important improvements to the Youth Athletic Park (YAP).  The first is additional lights for the ball 

fields.  This would be a tremendous improvement for our league and its growth.  This will allow us to 

have more practices and games, but more importantly recruit more outstanding volunteers to assist in 

our organization that have a direct impact on our kids’ lives whose work schedules do not allow the 

flexibility to be at the ball fields at 3:30 during the week.  The second improvement of additional 

bathrooms at the Batting Cages would also be very well received.  The Batting Cages are an important 

part of our program and when children need to use the restroom they need to go a very far distance to 

do so.  From a safety and continuity perspective, it would be excellent if there were rest rooms located 

by the cages.  Every night, we have at least 40 kids at those cages, working hard and having fun.   

Thank you very much for your time reading my email.  We really appreciate all that you do for the City 

and we would like your support for these improvements in your upcoming commission meetings. 

 
 
RESIDENT: Michael Michota 
COMMENT: 
My name is Michael Michota and I have been a resident of Mission Viejo since 1998. My wife Jennifer 
and I own a home near Aurora Park and also own and operate our family business here in Mission Viejo.  
Our oldest son Jaden is 12 and attends Newhart Middle School.  Our youngest son Evan is 10 and 
attends Philip J Reilly Elementary School. We love our lives here in the City of Mission Viejo and couldn’t 
imagine living anywhere else. We enjoy the Lake, Oso Creek, the parks, the special events, the shopping 
and restaurants and most of all…we LOVE South Mission Viejo Little League Baseball! 
 
This is our 8th year as members of South Mission Viejo Little League. Jaden is playing in his Majors 
season right now, and Evan is playing AAA.  Both my wife and I are very involved with the league having 
served on the Board of Directors, as coaches and managers, and I recently served as President of the 
league in 2017 and 2018. We are lucky to call Marty Russo Youth Athletic Park our league home and 
fortunate to play all of our games there, host tournaments and enjoy the community spirit that Little 
League and the City of Mission Viejo provide.   
 
Mr. Sachs, as you and the other Council members consider future options for improvements in our 
neighborhood parks, we ask that you consider 2 key improvements to our home fields at Marty Russo 
Youth Athletic Park.   

Page 25 of 35Item# 10.



EXHIBIT C 

 
1) Currently only 3 of the 8 fields at the Park have permanent lighting, causing restrictions in the 
scheduling of baseball games and creating the necessity for expensive temporary lighting during peak 
playing months at the Park.  Safety concerns are also raised with the temporary lights as we must 
restrict our teams to conduct only infield play when these lights are in operation.  No outfield play is 
allowed. As you can imagine, this can be challenging. 
 
Proposed Improvement:  Add permanent field lighting to fields #2 and #3 to expand the use of the Park 
and create safer playing conditions after dark. 
 
2) The furthest northeast area of the Park houses the batting cages and these cages are heavily utilized 
during the 4 months of Fall baseball and the 6 months of the Spring season by all teams. However, the 
Park’s restroom facilities are located in the furthest southwest corner of the Park, about a quarter-mile 
walk from one end of the Park to the other. It’s not only a long walk to the facilities, but after dark it can 
be a little daunting walking through unlit areas of the park to get there. 
 
Proposed improvement:  Add additional restroom facilities to the northeast area of the Park to better 
serve those using the batting cages and Junior fields. 
 
Thank you for your attention to these requests, and for all of your efforts and those of the entire City 
Council. Life in Mission Viejo is second-to-none. 
 

 

RESIDENT: Shireen Malone 

COMMENT: 

My name is Shireen Malone and I am honored to call Mission Viejo my home since 2005.  I chose this 

wonderful city as my residence for many reasons, one of which was the desire to raise our family in a 

city which embodied a sense of community.  I wake up every morning and truly feel blessed to live here 

and enjoy all it has to offer.  We have two sons, Gavin, age eleven, and Luke, age seven, who were born 

here.  You actually met Gavin recently when you spoke to the cub scouts of troop 818.  

Over the years, it has been a pleasure to enjoy all the activities available throughout the city, especially 

the incredible sports programs.  Having two active boys, means we need to continually find an avenue to 

release their energy!  Both of my sons have been heavily involved in baseball through South Mission 

Viejo Little League (SMVLL) since they were in t-ball.  We have all enjoyed spending countless hours, as a 

family, down at the Youth Athletic Park.   

This park and the people who make up the league embody what it means to be part of a 

community.  The memories that my boys, as well as countless others, have from their years at YAP, are 

indelibly etched in their brains and will be remembered for years to come - memories of difficult losses 

and hard-fought wins, memories of a pick-up game with kids from the opposing team that they just 

played, memories of fun days turned into evening gatherings “down at the field”.  YAP is also the place 

where life-long lessons are taught – lessons of character, lessons of good sportsmanship, lessons of 

perseverance and digging deep to fight on, lessons of being kind to your fellow players, lessons of 

confidence and teamwork.  These are the things that happened “down at the field”.   The field is also 

where long-lasting bonds of friendship are created and fostered.  These are the memories that I want 

my boys to continue to have.  When they grow up and do amazing things in this world, I want them to 

Page 26 of 35Item# 10.



EXHIBIT C 

look back at their years “down at the field” in Mission Viejo, with a smile on their face and remember all 

the wonderful times they had there.  I want them to look back with fondness at the time they spent 

“down at the field”.   

The field and the over 350 volunteers, parents, grandparents, guardians, siblings, cousins, aunts, uncles, 

extended family and friends shape our future citizens and create boys and girls who will do amazing 

things and represent our proud city.  These things happen “down at the field”. 

As a Mission Viejo family and a “South” (SMVLL) family, we enjoyed being part of this league so much 

that my husband and I both joined the board of SMVLL, so that we could give back and make the next 

season even better than the last.  To that end, I respectfully request the Mission Viejo Community 

Services Commission consider the acquisition of lighting for the fields at YAP that don’t already have this 

available.  This addition would be a benefit, not only to the league in general, but also to the many 

future generations of young boys and girls who will be making these memories “down at the 

field.”  Logistically, it would allow, the league to schedule more practices and games throughout the 

week.  This additional time on the field would benefit the citizens of Mission Viejo by allowing them 

access to the field at times when they ordinarily wouldn’t be able to be there.  This would allow many 

family members who work and can’t be at the field as early as 3:30pm, an opportunity to attend games 

and cheer on their baseball players.  The addition of lights would have a direct impact on the citizens of 

Mission Viejo who enjoy YAP, as it would expand the ability to remain at the field longer and foster the 

sense of community, that is Mission Viejo.  

Also, I request the Mission Viejo Community Services Commission consider the placement of additional 

bathrooms in the area of the batting cages, at the east side of YAP.  The batting cages are an integral 

part of the practice schedule and therefore the players spend many hours at that area of the 

field.  Currently, the players have to sprint to the bathrooms that are located on the opposite side of the 

field, closest to Olympiad.    This causes a safety issue, as well as a being far for the young children to 

traverse.  Having restrooms adjacent to the batting cage area would be logistically beneficial to all users 

of the fields.   

Thank you for your time and consideration in reviewing this email regarding the requested 

improvements to YAP – our community field.  Thank you and your colleagues for your tireless hours on 

the city council to ensure that our city remains the greatest city to live in!  I hope you see the 

importance of these additions to YAP and hope for your support in this endeavor. 

I hope to see YOU “down at the field” this season. 

 

RESIDENT: Nic Hernandez 

COMMENT: 

My name is Nic Hernandez. My entire life I had been a Northern California resident and was very 

hesitant to start a family anywhere else but up North. My wife Darci had spent about five years in 

Mission Viejo during elementary school and just remembered how great it was to be a kid here. After a 

little persuasion from here we moved down to Southern California and chose the great City of Mission 

Viejo as a place to set our roots and build a family. Since moving to Mission Viejo in 2010 we have added 

two boys to the family and have been able to enjoy all the great activities that the city has to provide. 

Over the past three years they have been part of South Mission Viejo Little League. The facilities that are 

Page 27 of 35Item# 10.



EXHIBIT C 

provided are some of the best that I have ever seen. I would like to thank you, and the members prior to 

you, for making it a priority to have such great facilities that attract more families to our area. Being a 

volunteer for the league and seeing how hard the City works to provide the best resources to our 

children will have a lasting effect on them as they grow. 

I understand that the Mission Viejo Community Services Commission is in due diligence on some 

important improvements to the Youth Athletic Park (YAP).  The first is additional lights for the ball 

fields.  This would be a tremendous improvement for our league and its growth.  This will allow us to 

have more practices and games, but more importantly recruit more outstanding volunteers to assist in 

our organization that have a direct impact on our kids’ lives whose work schedules do not allow the 

flexibility to be at the ball fields at 3:30 during the week.  The second improvement of additional 

bathrooms at the Batting Cages would also be very well received.  The Batting Cages are an important 

part of our program and when children need to use the restroom they need to go a very far distance to 

do so.  From a safety and continuity perspective, it would be excellent if there were rest rooms located 

by the cages.  Every night, we have at least 40 kids at those cages, working hard and having fun.   

Thank you for reading my email. The Hernandez family really appreciates all that you do for the City and 

we would like your support for these improvements in your upcoming commission meetings. 

 

MONTANOSO RECREATION CENTER REHABILITATION 

RESIDENT: Shannon Barton 

COMMENT: 

I have been a long-term member of the recreational Center and use the pool several times during the 

week. Over those years, I have seen the city apply the money necessary to both upgrade and maintain 

the Centers. The pool at Montanoso is heavily used by myself and other lap swimmers. Several years 

ago, the pool needed repairs and the city directed capital to do so. Since then, normal wear and tear 

requires the city to do so again. The deck where most people enter the pool, has for several years been 

cracked and has had temporary repairs.   

 

As with any physical structure, safety is a concern.  This requires appropriate expenditures.  I believe the 

city should vote in favor of applying necessary funds to do so. 

 

RESIDENT: Tony Elia 

COMMENT: 

Replace toilets in Women's restroom - often don't flush completely and seem to 'clog' easily (often 

shown as 'out of order') 

Install overhead fans in the Jazzercise room 

Install water-bottle filler in Jazzercise room (like one in the gym) 

Install window shades on west-facing windows in the gym 

Install dry sauna 

Page 28 of 35Item# 10.

x-apple-data-detectors://13/


EXHIBIT C 

Avoid scheduling 'meetings' during normal 'heavy use' periods (E.g. during Jazzercise classes, Sat 

mornings when gym is busy, etc) - creates parking problems.  Perhaps the Murray Center could be used 

for meetings since they have ample parking. 

(The above items were 'gathered' from a variety of users - we all love the center and appreciate the 

hard-working staff.) 

 

RESIDENT: Margie Mickelson 

COMMENT: 

To whom it may concern: 

I have been a member of the Montanoso Recreation Center for close to 20 years.  I am an avid swimmer 

and the pool is truly a refuge for me.  Montanoso is one of the few places where lap swimming is 

available. Please consider providing the needed funding to resurface the pool to keep this asset of the 

community alive and well!  It is such a friendly, warm-hearted community of swimmers there. I am a 

therapist and work a lot with trauma victims.  The swimming is more than exercise for me, it is 

therapeutic.  Please keep our pool maintained!  

 

RESIDENT: Nathaniel Tuttle 

COMMENT: 

The Montanoso Recreation Center is probably the most used of all the capital improvement projects. I 

do believe all these locations do need improvements done to them but I think Montanoso should be at 

the top of this list for all improvements listed. The nine items listed for Montanoso should be addressed 

in the following order: 

    1. Pool Equipment Replacement 

    2. Pool and Spa Re-Plaster 

    3. Fitness Equipment 

    4. Patio Improvements 

    5. Deck Work 

    6. Window Replacement 

    7. LED Lighting Upgrade 

    8. Outdoor Showers 

    9. Facility Signage 

 

Below are additional items that should be addressed at Montanoso. 

• Re-cover patio for members to use as well as TRX and other classes.  
o This patio gets used all the time, and when it rains or it gets too hot outside, then 

members are stuck having to come inside to find somewhere to workout. If it is a class 
such as TRX then it has to be cancelled or another location has to be found if possible. 
This patio is a great escape for when it is too crowded to workout inside the gym. The 
current cover is ripped and is not made protect from rain or other elements. 

o By having a covered patio, TRX would not have to cancel classes during rain or excessive 
heat, or close down the powerlifting room to have class in there. Cancelling classes 

Page 29 of 35Item# 10.



EXHIBIT C 

could lead to a loss in revenue as this is a paid class and members who pay for this class 
could drop out or even cancel membership completely and go to another gym. Closing 
down the powerlifting room for TRX does not go over well for members who want to 
use the powerlifting room during TRX class. The powerlifting room is designed and laid 
out for powerlifting and not for TRX. Doing classes in the powerlifting room is not only 
tight and cramped but not suitable when there is no air circulation back there. 

o Additional paid classes could then be added or current classes in the aerobics room 
could be moved out there to help clear up room in the aerobics room for new classes or 
to lessen the wear and tear in that aerobics room. 

• Removal of the four pillars in the patio. 
o These pillars are in the way during TRX limits the number of members we can have in 

this paid class. With the removal of these pillars we could add additional TRX bands and 
additional members to the class therefore increasing revenue for Montanoso. These 
pillars also limit the exercises members can do since they are in the way but it also limits 
the full potential of what that patio can be used for. 

• New Air-conditioning unit and fans to help with temperature and circulation 
o  The gym seems to have different temperature zones depending on where you stand in 

that gym even when there is nobody in the gym and it is not always warmer by the 
windows or cooler in the shaded areas. This lack of circulation also causes the gym to 
smell really bad and sends multiple members outside to grab a quick breath of fresh air 
and to also get over any light headedness they may have. Improved air quality and 
circulation will definitely increase member happiness and retention. 

I hope the Community Services Commission takes this input into consideration when voting and 

prioritizing projects for the city. As previously mentioned, the Montanoso Recreation Center is the most 

heavily used of the locations mentioned that need improvements done. These items mentioned above 

are a consolidation of the top three things I have heard over the past years from people who work out at 

Montanoso. 

 

RESIDENT: Ponci Kaylor 

COMMENT: 

Subject: Montanoso Rec Center 

 

Hello, 

As a long-time member and now fitness instructor, I would like to see the following improvements, 

which will enhance client experience: 

1.  Enclose the outdoors space where TRX is located and knock down the pillars. This will allow TRX to 

continue outside rain or shine. Removing the four pillars will provide more space for TRX workouts. 

2.  Improve the air flow inside the gym. The heavy weightlifting room is very stuffy and has a bad odor 

making it difficult to workout in. Also, the air flow in the main area of the gym needs improvement as 

well. 

3. Better maintenance of the equipment so the they don't break down as often. 

Page 30 of 35Item# 10.



EXHIBIT C 

RESIDENT: Mike Ojeda 

COMMENT: 

My name is Mike Ojeda.  I spoke to you by telephone last week about speaking at the capital 

improvement project meeting.  I will speak early at the open forum starting at 6:00 p.m.  I will check in 

with you at 5:00 p.m. The following are my proposals: 

"Hello, my name is Mike Ojeda. I have been a member of Mission Recreation Center for over 10 years, 
using the Montanoso Rec Center.  I want to discuss my suggestion for improving the design of the Men's 
Bathroom at the Montanoso facility, specifically the shower room area, and address the water drainage 
problem. 
 
When you enter the shower room you first notice a 6-foot-long wooden bench about 1 foot wide and a 
row of 24 lockers, 12 on top and 12 below on the wall facing you.  If you have 3 or 4 men using them and 
changing at the same time it is crowded and you do not have bench space available. 
 
My proposal would be to remove all locker doors on the bottom row and open them up to create space 
for gym bags and clothing instead of members using the wooden bench.  To your immediate right is an 
individual shower stall and swim suit drying apparatus on the wall.  To the left are 4 shower stalls 
including a stall for handicap access.  I would propose removing the individual shower stall completely 
and relocate the swim suit dryer to the other side of room.  By removing this shower and dryer it would 
allow installation of 6-10 more lockers and open space below for clothing and bags, and another bench 
for seating.  I estimate this would provide 40% more area for changing and securing personal belongings 
 
On the issue of water drainage.  The initial floor installation does not control water flow adequately, 
therefore water is consistently present in various places throughout the room outside shower stalls, so 
much that floor mats were installed in several places in shower room.  One such mat was installed just 
inside entrance to room in front of bench. To me, this is not so much a drainage problem, but a liability 
problem. I have personally witnessed the aftermath of an elderly member entering the shower room 
stepping on the blue mat, the mat shifted, the man fell forward hitting his head on the wooden bench 
just above his eye. He quickly developed a knot above his eye the size of a golf ball and was considerably 
shaken up.  He had a black eye for days afterward. Fortunately, he did not report his injury, and the rec 
center 'dodged a bullet'.  The drainage problem is a lawsuit waiting to happen. 
 
I know there are several issues and proposals you will hear this evening, but when it comes to liabilities 
and accompanying lawsuits that the City will face, I think this proposal should be a top priority." 
 

RESIDENT: Robert L. Knoke 

COMMENT: 

Dear Community Services Commission, 

I will not be able to attend your meeting on March 19, 2019 at 6PM as I will be out of town at that time 

but want to address my concerns regarding the Montanoso Recreation Center, that I have been a 

member of since 1999, regarding the Rehabilitation Capital Improvement Projects. 

My primary interest is the maintenance of the swimming pool area which I use daily for lap swimming to 

keep myself in good spirit. Below are my major concerns that should be addressed during Capital 

Improvement Projects: 

Page 31 of 35Item# 10.



EXHIBIT C 

Deferred Maintenance sums up my view of the pool area. It is said that it is far more expensive in the 

long run to let things run down to such a major point as has our Montanoso Pool. 

Both the pool and spa area need to be re plastered - see attached photos  

There are areas below the water line of pool where rust marks are showing through the plaster that 

shows rusting of the steel bars that holds the cement pool together. 

The decking around the pool has many cracks and sharp edges that one could get injured while walking 

on said decking - see attached photos  

The blue tile by the steps entering the pool is cracking and separating from the pool deck. 

Lastly, the tile that marks the center line of each swim lane is black in color. The problem is that when 

you are swimming in the afternoon hours the shadow from the lane line that separates each lane and 

the center lane line are hard to tell apart. My solution would be to replace the black tile with a color that 

would contrast the two. 

Thank you for your time considering my views.  

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

NORMAN P. MURRAY COMMUNITY & SENIOR CENTER 

No comments submitted. 

 

OSO VIEJO COMMUNITY PARK 

RESIDENT: Lezlie Schreiber 

COMMENT: 

I am writing this email to request that more bocce courts be built at Oso Viejo Community Park.  

Bocce has changed my husband's life...he has a new set of friends and an excuse to get up and out 

several days a week. 

But two courts cannot accommodate the number of people who want to play. 

 

SIERRA RECREATION CENTER REHABILITATION 

Page 32 of 35Item# 10.



EXHIBIT C 

RESIDENT: Vinh Le 
COMMENT: 
My name is Vinh Le.  I am a senior and a 32-year resident of the beautiful city of Mission Viejo. I am 
writing today to bring to your attention one of our city’s cherished amenities which helps our family 
grows and stay healthy throughout the years, and make us proud of the community we live in.   

While we really enjoy the year-round programs offered at Sierra center and appreciate its most helpful 
and friendly staff, we like to share our concerns about the state of the facility.  The center has not gone 
through any major renovation for several years and currently shows signs of aging, deteriorating, and 
being outdated. 

I would like to request the council’s thoughtful considerations during city budget planning to 
appropriate funds for Sierra center to address the following areas of concerns: 

-          Facility signage  
-          Painting of the facility 
-          Lack of shade structures in the playground area 
-          Pool equipment replacement 
-          Pool and spa re-plaster 
-          Tennis court fencing replacement 
-          Re-position wall near spa 
-          Exercise equipment upgrade and addition 
-          Restroom/locker room renovation  
-          Restroom door replacement 
-          Wood trim and paint 
 
I know that with your help our center can again become a beautiful, modernized facility for our 
community to treasure. 

 

RESIDENT: Tony Lozinski 
COMMENT: 
Happy Monday!!  I’m a 25 year Mission Viejo resident and have had a family membership at Sierra 
Recreation for many years. 
 
As a matter of fact I live directly across the street from the Sierra Recreation Center and try and use it as 
much as I can, when not traveling.  I love the Sierra Rec center!! 
 
I’m writing this morning to ask that the Sierra Recreation Center, I love so much gets some needed 
updating and attention before too long.  The elliptical machines I use are really beginning to show their 
age….as a matter of fact it seems like one of the three is generally not working properly.  Many of the 
weight machines I lift on are beginning to rust and show their age.  Additionally, the bathrooms are 
definitely in need of updating and some general paint inside and out would be welcome. 
 
Again, I’m a huge fan of the Sierra Rec center and just want to see it updated so it doesn’t get to a point 
where it’s inoperable. Thank you for all you do in the City. 

 

Page 33 of 35Item# 10.



EXHIBIT C 

 
RESIDENT: Mr. and Mrs. Keith Wanser 
COMMENT: 
My main concern is the repositioning of the wall near the Spa. The wall near the Spa is a wonderful 
feature because it provides a great ambiance, wind shelter, shade from the sun. There could be a 
camera near the spa area for more visibility or trim the bushes back if necessary. Please do not move 
the wall too far back – it’s only a half moon. It doesn’t really block anything from the lifeguard’s viewing 
of the spa. Montanoso’s spa does not have a wall and the ambiance of Sierra’s spa encourages 
conversation and relaxation. I love the Spa at Sierra because it provides relief to my arthritis, like many 
other members. 
 
There is a low separation (very short wall) between the playground and pool. I ask our Commission to 
consider extending the rod iron fencing with a gate around the playground to prevent young children 
from leaving the play area and entering the pool. It would provide a much safer environment for young 
children and families. It’s asking too much of the Lifeguard to watch both the playground and pool.  
 
The women’s bathroom at Sierra does not compare to Montanoso. There is no hand dryer, swimsuit 
dryer, or privacy. The shower setup is very poor. Not everyone is a young girl who is changing in the 
nude like they do in schools – I would like to shower and change in privacy. Please knock out some walls 
to provide more space for women. Please upgrade the jets on the Jacuzzis as the spas are used to 
provide relief for arthritis and joint aches.  

 
 
OTHER ITEMS SUBMITTED 

RESIDENT: Ian Carpe 

COMMENT: 

Subject: Preciados park resurfacing capital project 

Please add this as a capital project. Our infant daughter plays there every day and our newborn soon will 

also. The playground surface is badly damaged from years of usage, is cracking and in need of 

replacement. It is a trip and fall hazard. Please let me know that you have added this to the City priority 

capital projects list for consideration. 

 
RESIDENT: Andrew Hill 
COMMENT: 
To whom it may concern, 
 
I am writing today to ask about the upcoming Capital Improvements Projects meeting on March 19th, I 
reviewed the list of projects in the flyer and was wondering if the meeting will just review the proposals 
in the flyer or if there is an ability to suggest other improvements that are important to the community 
that are not on the list? 
 
Mission Viejo is home to one of the largest AYSO regions in the country, it is a completely volunteer run 
organization with literally 1000’s of hours of volunteering by hard working residents every week, we are 
also home to other club soccer programs as well as flag football programs that are expanding all the 
time.  Mission Viejo is also one of the only cities in the region who have no all-weather turf fields 

Page 34 of 35Item# 10.



EXHIBIT C 

available for soccer play during the spring season and because the city does such a fantastic job in 
protecting our beautiful fields every week (they really do) the grass fields are rightly closed every time 
there is minor rainfall.  This has a huge impact on the city residents who rely on these fields for practice 
time and exercise for their kids during the week and it has an impact on championship standings and the 
overall competition every time we have to cancel games that are frequently unable to make up due to 
weather conditions.  It also has a big impact on the people who give up their time to volunteer for these 
programs as they are having to adjust the other commitments in their lives to accommodate the 
changes in practice or game times that often come with very short notice. 
 
I am sure we can get a lot of people behind a request to install some all-weather fields in the World Cup 
/ OSO Complex or even at YAP but I am not sure how our community would go about making such a 
request so guidance on this would be very much appreciated. 
 
Thanks. 
 

Page 35 of 35Item# 10.



1

AGENDA REPORT
Meeting Date

04/09/2019

Prepared By: Susan Knudson, Administrative Services Manager
Budgetary Review By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services / City Treasurer
Submitted By: Dennis Wilberg, City Manager

Agenda Title
FY 2019-21 Revenue Projections

Recommended Action
Receive and File Report

The City is in the process of developing the FY 2019-21 budget, including revenue projections.  Staff utilizes a variety of 
resources in developing revenue projections, including:  Hdl Coren & Cone (Hdl), the City’s property and sales tax 
consultant; economic forecasts developed by various business schools, including, California State University Fullerton 
(CSUF), University of California Los Angeles (UCLA), and Chapman University (Chapman); California Department of 
Tax and Fee Administration (CDTFA), State Department of Finance (DOF); Orange County Transportation Authority 
(OCTA); and other applicable sources as needed.  It has always been the City’s process to develop the most conservative 
projections utilizing these resources to project city revenue.

As the budget preparation process progresses, revenue projections will be updated as additional information becomes 
known.

Preliminary revenue projections have been developed for all funds and are reflected in the following table.

Fund FY 18/19 
Projection

FY 19/20 
Projection

%Change 
from FY 

18/19

FY 20/21 
Projection

% Change 
from FY 

19/20
General $59,036,907 $60,227,433 2.0% $61,092,157 1.4%
Library 3,209,555 3,230,480 0.7% 3,315,010 2.6%
COPS 150,000 200,000 33.3% 200,000 0.0%
Bldg Homes & Jobs SB2 0.00 250,000 100.0% 250,000 0.0%
Gas Tax 2,057,070 2,525,353 22.8% 2,525,353 0.0%
Gas Tax RMRA-SB 1 1,522,067 1,588,742 4.4% 1,588,742 0.0%
AQMD 121,000 123,000 1.7% 123,000 0.0%
Park Development Fees 0.00 1,010,000 100.0% 0.00 -100.0%
CDBG 476,216 413,000 -13.3% 413,000 0.0%
Measure M2 1,696,976 1,664,930 -1.9% 1,706,553 2.5%
Senior Mobility Grant 119,000 124,000 4.2% 129,000 4.0%
MV Mall Parking Lease 1,250,000 1,250,000 0.0% 1,259,400 0.8%
MVTV 553,100 564,200 2.0% 558,854 -0.9%
Animal Services 2,338,872 2,450,744 4.8% 2,571,763 4.9%

Note:  Library and Animal Services Fund excludes General Fund Subsidy

Overall, it is anticipated that the General Fund revenues will increase approximately $1.2 million in FY 19/20 over the 
FY 18/19 amended budget and then increase another $865,000 in FY 20/21.  

Page 1 of 5Item# 11.



2

Library Fund revenue is projected to slightly increase 0.7% in FY 19/20 and we expect to see a 2.6% increase in FY 20/21.  
While property taxes in the Library Fund are projected to increase approximately $100,000 in the first year, this increase 
is offset by a federal grant received in FY 18/19 that will not be received in FY 19/20.  

The COPS Fund accounts for the resources and related expenditures for a law enforcement grant.  It is projected the City 
will receive approximately $200,000 in both FY 19/20 and FY 20/21.  This is a 33.3% increase over the FY 18/19 amended 
budget.  The projected increase is based on actual revenue received from this grant over the past 2 years.

With the passage of Senate Bill 2, Building Homes and Jobs Act, the City anticipates receiving $250,000 for each of FY 
19/20 and FY 20/21.  This amount is preliminary and this revenue and related appropriations will be adjusted once amounts 
are known.

Gas Tax revenue is increasing by 22.8% in FY 19/20.  Estimates are not available for FY 20/21 and will be updated once 
received.  The large increase, which will only occur in FY 19/20, is due to the stabilization of Street & Highways Code 
Section 2103 allocations due to the Road Repair and Accountability Act (SB 1).  Previously, the State Board of 
Equalization had discretionary rate setting authority over this revenue source.  SB 1 set this rate at 17.3 cents per gallon, 
up from the current 11.7 cent amount.  These revenue projections are based on calculations by the State Department of 
Finance.  Initial estimates were received in January and will be updated in May.

With the passage of SB 1 the City receives additional revenue to concentrate efforts for maintaining City roads. The City 
is expecting a 4.4% increase over FY 18/19 based on state estimates. Estimates are not yet available for FY 20/21 and will 
be updated once revised projections are received from the State. 

The AQMD Fund accounts for the resources and related expenditures for air quality improvement programs and projects.  
These resources remain relatively consistent from year to year with small growth increases.

A new Shea development in Mission Viejo is expected to generate $1,000,000 in Park Development fees in FY 19/20 
along with $10,000 in accumulated interest.  These resources are dedicated for park related capital projects and will be 
further discussed at the next Council meeting as part of the capital improvement program budget agenda. 

For the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Fund, the annual FY 19/20 grant allocation is $413,000.  At this 
time the same funding level is assumed for FY 20/21. 

The Measure M2 Fund projections for both years are based on projections provided by the Orange County Transportation 
Authority (OCTA).

Senior Mobility Grant Fund accounts for the resources and related expenditures for the senior transportation program.  
These amounts are based on projections provided by OCTA.

The revenue projected for the MV Mall Parking Lease is from sales taxes generated by the Mall and needed for the Mall 
Bond debt service payment.  The sales tax amount is projected to be flat for FY 19/20 with a small increase for FY 20/21.    

Mission Viejo Television (MVTV) Fund revenue is derived from a portion of General Fund franchise fees.  An increase 
is expected in FY 19/20 based on current year actual receipts.  A slight decrease is projected for FY 20/21 reflecting a 
continuing shift of cable service to internet streaming viewership.  

The Animal Service Fund revenue, which includes the charges for services to the cities of Aliso Viejo, Laguna Hills, 
Laguna Niguel, and Rancho Santa Margarita, is expected to increase 4.7% from the prior year.  The largest increase in 
revenue for this fund is for animal licenses in the amount of $50,000.  

Page 2 of 5Item# 11.



3

General Fund Projections
Further analysis on General Fund projections is presented in the table below.

Revenue Type FY 18/19 
Projection

FY 19/20 
Projection

% 
Change 
from FY 

18/19

FY 20/21 
Projection

% 
Change 
from FY 

19/20
Property Taxes-Secured $20,960,000 $21,798,400 4.0% $22,452,352 3.0%
Property Taxes-In Lieu 9,250,000 9,620,000 4.0% 9,908,600 3.0%
Property Taxes-Other 1,945,000 1,959,000 0.7% 1,962,900 0.2%
Sales Taxes 15,715,900 15,857,000 0.9% 15,857,000 0.0%
Real Property Transfer Tax 500,000 500,000 0.0% 500,000 0.0%
Transient Occupancy Tax 1,100,000 1,206,000 9.6% 1,206,000 0.0%
Franchise Taxes 2,500,000 2,700,000 8.0% 2,675,250 -0.9%
Vehicle Code Fines/ Parking 
Penalties 390,000 410,000 5.0% 410,000 0.0%

Licenses & Permits 1,760,980 1,622,800 -7.8% 1,622,800 0.0%
Recreation Fees 1,492,705 1,490,205 -0.2% 1,489,105 -0.1%
Rents & Concessions 919,200 974,021 6.0% 989,144 1.6%
Investment Income 400,000 400,000 0.0% 400,000 0.0%

Subtotal $56,933,785 $58,537,426 $59,473,151
Other General Fund Revenue 2,103,122 1,690,007 -19.6% 1,619,006 -4.2%

Total General Fund Revenue $59,036,907 $60,227,433 $61,092,157

Property Taxes – Secured and In Lieu – Home values in Mission Viejo have grown steadily over the past 5 years. 
According to the Orange County Assessor’s Office, values in Mission Viejo have increased an average of 4.54% since 
2014-15. Current median home values are slightly above pre-recession peaks in 2006; however, economists from CSUF 
report that home price appreciation has slowed down both locally and nationally. Staff conservatively projects a 4.0% 
increase for FY 19/20 and 3.0% increase for FY 20/21.  Staff will continue to evaluate these projections and additional 
data to determine if growth rates are too conservative and will make adjustments accordingly

Property Taxes – Other – This category includes prior year secured, current and prior year unsecured, delinquent, 
supplemental and residual (from redevelopment dissolution) property taxes. Other property tax types are highly variable 
from year to year so projections are based on most recent activity and do not include a growth factor. The growth here is 
due to a slight increase in redevelopment dissolution residual income due to expected growth in tax increment.

Sales Taxes – Sales tax growth has been relatively flat in the past few years and we are not seeing anything in our actual 
activity from existing businesses this year that affects that trend.  The recent Supreme Court decision in the Wayfair case 
and State legislation in response to that decision should have some effect on our sales tax revenue.  League of California 
Cities analysts are predicting that local jurisdictions could see 2% to 3% increases in their sales tax base over the next few 
years, but caution that this growth could be delayed and recommend that increases to revenue should be delayed.  The 
growth reflected in FY 19/20 is due to new tax revenue from the opening of the Target on Puerta Real and Floor & Décor 
on Muirlands. Conservatively, no growth is projected in FY 20/21.  

Real Property Transfer Tax – This projection is based on housing market forecasts, prior year actuals, and current year 
activity levels. The number of single-family residential transfers of ownership have started to decline this year and 
economists have reported slowing in the market.  Anticipated lower transactions for the next two years is offset with higher 
market values on those transactions.  Therefore, Staff is projecting revenue in this category to remain unchanged from FY 
18/19 for both fiscal years.

Page 3 of 5Item# 11.



4

Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT) – Revenue in this category has been trending higher over the last several fiscal years. 
The Hampton Inn & Suites opened in September 2017, contributing to this increase.  Staff’s projection for all four hotels 
is based on current occupancy rate trends based on recent TOT return data and current published room rates.  

Franchise Fees – Staff projects an 8% growth in FY 19/20 based on current year trends, however, revenues from Cox 
Communications and AT&T have been declining. There is a slight decline of 0.9% in revenue projected for FY 20/21.

Vehicle Code Fines/Parking Penalties – These types of revenue remain relatively stable from year to year.  Staff is 
projecting growth in FY 19/20 based on current year activity with no growth in the second year.

Licenses & Permits – Most of this revenue source is comprised of building, plumbing, electrical, and mechanical permits. 
These revenues fluctuate with the amount of building construction in the City. There have been higher permit revenues in 
the last two fiscal years due to several large commercial construction projects such as the NCA medical office building 
and Greenstreet. Community Development Staff does not anticipate any large commercial projects during the next two 
fiscal years. This revenue category is expected to decline by 7.8% in FY 19/20, followed by no growth in FY 20/21. 

Recreation Fees – Recreation fees have remained relatively flat from year to year. Staff expects revenues to marginally 
decline by 0.2% and 0.1% in FY 19/20 and FY 20/21, respectively, due to projected declines in teen, adult, and senior 
class offerings and participation.   

Rents & Concessions – Approximately 60% of this revenue source are from cell sites.  Cell site revenue is expected to 
increase approximately 14%.  The majority of the balance of this category is for facility rentals.  Facility rentals tend to 
remain relatively flat from year to year and no growth is projected for facility rentals.  

Investment Income – Interest rates have steadily increased over the last several years.  In addition, the City hired an 
investment manager to actively manage the City’s portfolio earlier in the current fiscal year.  As a result, the City increased 
the FY 18/19 investment income projection during the mid-year review.  The current projection for FY 19/20 and FY 
20/21 is based on our current year projection.  Staff will continue to monitor the changes in our investment portfolio as 
we shift investments under our new investment strategy and make changes to this projection as appropriate.  It should be 
noted that economists are cautioning that the economy could slow in the next year or two and if that occurs, investment 
income will likely be negatively impacted.

Other Revenue – The remaining revenue is comprised of reimbursements, intergovernmental revenue, donations, 
forfeitures and other miscellaneous sources.  For FY 19/20, there is also a projected Site C loan payment from the Housing 
Authority in the amount of $60,000.  These types of revenues are inconsistent from year to year or are one-time in nature 
such as grants received. Staff projects a 19.6% decline in FY 19/20 and a decline of 4.2% in FY 20/21.

In addition, the City anticipates the return of Mall generated sales tax from the Mall bond trustee, called the rolling reserve, 
to be $1,695,142 in FY 19/20 and $1,341,827 in FY 20/21. We are required to remit Mall generated sales tax to the bond 
trustee based on specific calculations each year. Once the annual debt service payment is made each September, any 
residual sales tax amounts not needed to pay debt service is returned to the City. The rolling reserve amount in FY 18/19 
was $1,053,295.

Fiscal Impact: n/a
Amount Requested: $
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?: (If no, see attached fiscal analysis)
Prog/Fund #:  Category:  Pers.  Optg. Cap.   -or-   CIP#:  Fund#:

Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item

Page 4 of 5Item# 11.



5

Attachments

Page 5 of 5Item# 11.



1

AGENDA REPORT
Meeting Date

04/09/2019

Prepared By: Dennis Wilberg, City Manager
Budgetary Review By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services / City Treasurer
Submitted By: Dennis Wilberg, City Manager

Agenda Title
Analysis of Contract Law Enforcement Services Costs and Methodology for Contract Cities Report

Recommended Action
Receive report

Executive Summary
Summary: 

The “Analysis of Contract Law Enforcement Services Costs and Methodology for Contract Cities” report prepared by Matrix 
Consulting Group in consultation with the OCSD, County of Orange, and the thirteen OCSD contract city partners, has been 
completed and is submitted for City Council review and information.  While the analysis of the OCSD contract data was extremely 
detailed and often cumbersome, the attached final report presents the key findings in a summary format for ease of reading.  There 
are several key findings/take-aways from the effort as follows:

1. The report confirmed that the contract Cities are getting quality law enforcement services at a rate lower than comparable non-
OCSD contact cities.
2. Key drivers of the cost of the OCSD contract are salaries and benefits which are controlled by the County Board of Supervisors and 
Orange County Employees Retirement System.
3. The first recommendation, to pursue billing of personal costs based on actual salaries instead of top step salary level was included 
primarily because it was something everyone felt could be achieved in the coming contract year, and the Sheriff’s department agreed 
to evaluate how best to implement the recommendation.  
4. The second recommendation, a fleet maintenance cost review, will require further analysis with the County itself as it is not within 
the control of the OCSD.
5. There are still a number of areas that the Sheriff has identified as opportunities to generate efficiencies and cost savings.  These 
opportunities involve further analysis of some sub-regional service delivery models, and the Sheriff has committed to re-establishing a 
City Manager TAC to work on these concepts.

At this point in time the next steps are:

1. Working with OCSD contract staff on the implementation of the recommendation to bill contract cities at actual salary and benefit 
costs as opposed to top step (next 3 months).
2. Continue discussions with the County of Orange to identify specific opportunities to reduce costs in the area of fleet maintenance 
(6-12 months).
3. Continue to work with the Sheriff and OCSD to identify further opportunities to create efficiencies by regionalizing certain law 
enforcement services (1-2 years)

Background and Discussion:

Thirteen Orange County cities currently contract with the Orange County Sheriff’s Department (OCSD) for law enforcement services.  
OCSD consistently provides a high quality of service to its contract cities, however, costs in recent years have increased significantly, 
outpacing cost increases in other areas of municipal government.  

To more deeply understand the cost increases, and to identify potential strategies for creating additional operational efficiencies, the 
13 cities entered into a Memorandum of Understanding to retain the services of an independent third party to review and analyze 
existing agreements, the contract model, cost assumptions, methodologies, allocations and law enforcement strategies for cost 
containment.  The City Managers of the 13 contract cities, collaborated on a Scope of Work and sought proposals from qualified 
consultants.  Matrix Consulting Group was chosen to perform the work effort due to their extensive experience in conducing similar 
analyses and performing a similar scope of work.  

Page 1 of 19Item# 14.



2

For policy discussion purposes, the Analysis of Contract Law Enforcement Services Costs and Methodology for Contract Cities has 
been presented to the 13 cities and is included as Attachment A.  The full analysis (which is available upon request) identifies the 
same findings and recommendations as the Executive Analysis, but includes various supporting appendices and extensive, and often 
cumbersome data points, thus the more readable Executive Analysis is presented to assist in leading Council discussion.  Matrix 
worked closely with the City Managers throughout the project, and spent considerable time gathering data and interviewing OCSD 
and the County of Orange.

The first part of the report involved a significant work effort to perform an in-depth analysis of the contract costing model utilized by 
OCSD.  The areas examined were: Salaries and Employment Benefits, Services and Supplies, Transportation, Indirect Costs 
(including Overhead), Other Costs and Revenue.  Personnel Costs (Salaries and Benefits) are by far the largest cost component of 
the contract model, followed by Transportation Costs and various Overhead Costs that are applied.

The second part of the report is the summary of analysis and recommendations.  Matrix identified two primary recommendations for 
cities to consider.  The first is that “OCSD should consider utilizing actual hourly rates for personnel cost instead of a standardized 
rate.”  The second recommendation is that “Potential changes to the current calculation and methodology for Transportation services 
provided by OCPW/Fleet Services could result in overall savings.” Both of these recommendations, as well as the full report and 
analysis, have been shared with OCSD.  Sheriff Barnes has indicated that he is amenable to reviewing the information and further 
exploring any potential savings in these areas.

Fiscal Impact:
Amount Requested: $
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?: (If no, see attached fiscal analysis)
Prog/Fund #:  Category:  Pers.  Optg. Cap.   -or-   CIP#:  Fund#:

Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item

Attachments
Attachment A ~ Executive Analysis of Contract Law Enforcement Services Costs and Methodology for Contract Cities Report by 
Matrix Consulting Group.

Attachment B ~ Letter from Sheriff Don Barnes.

Page 2 of 19Item# 14.



Page 3 of 19Item# 14.



Page 4 of 19Item# 14.



Page 5 of 19Item# 14.



Page 6 of 19Item# 14.



Page 7 of 19Item# 14.



Page 8 of 19Item# 14.



Page 9 of 19Item# 14.



Page 10 of 19Item# 14.



Page 11 of 19Item# 14.



Page 12 of 19Item# 14.



Page 13 of 19Item# 14.



Page 14 of 19Item# 14.



Page 15 of 19Item# 14.



Page 16 of 19Item# 14.



Page 17 of 19Item# 14.



Page 18 of 19Item# 14.



Page 19 of 19Item# 14.



1

AGENDA REPORT
Meeting Date

04/09/2019

Prepared By: Dennis Wilberg, City Manager
Budgetary Review By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services / City Treasurer
Submitted By: Dennis Wilberg, City Manager

Agenda Title
Council Member Reports of Events and Activities Attended ~ AB1234

Recommended Action
Receive reports.

Executive Summary
AB 1234, the State law regarding expense reimbursements, requires regular reporting in a public meeting of activities and events 
attended by members of City legislative bodies. The law requires such reports be made at the next regular meeting following 
attendance at the event. (Government Code Section 53232.3(d).)

Following are brief written reports of events attended by Council members at City expense since the last City Council meeting, as 
taken from Councilmember calendars.  Council members may wish to elaborate or add additional information at the meeting.

Fiscal Impact:
Amount Requested: $
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?: (If no, see attached fiscal analysis)
Prog/Fund #:  Category:  Pers.  Optg. Cap.   -or-   CIP#:  Fund#:

Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item
N/A

Attachments
Reports of Events and Activities Attended

Page 1 of 6Item# 15.



Page 2 of 6Item# 15.



Page 3 of 6Item# 15.



Page 4 of 6Item# 15.



Page 5 of 6Item# 15.



Page 6 of 6Item# 15.


	Agenda
	1. - City Council Minutes
	2. - Check Register dated March 15, 2019 in the amount of $2,809,639.65
	3. - Check Register dated March 22, 2019 in the amount of $318,479.76
	4. - City Treasurer’s Monthly Report for February 2019
	5. - Mission Viejo Community Development Financing Authority (MVCDFA) Treasurer’s Monthly Report for February 2019
	6. - Successor Agency of the Community Development Agency Treasurer’s Monthly Report for February 2019
	7. - Mission Viejo Housing Authority (MVHA) Treasurer’s Monthly Report for February 2019
	8. - Fiscal Year 2019/20 Senate Bill 1 Road Repair and Accountability Act
	9. - Saddleback Valley Unified School District Youth Services Contract 2019-2021
	tmp875C.tmp
	Proposed 19.20 Budget page 1
	Exhibit C- Proposed 19.21 Budget Combined
	Proposed 20.21 Budget page 1
	Exhibit C- Proposed 19.21 Budget Combined
	Exhibit C- Proposed 19.21 Budget Combined

	10. - Capital Improvement Program Prioritization as Recommended by the Community Services Commission
	11. - FY 2019-21 Revenue Projections
	14. - Analysis of Contract Law Enforcement Services Costs and Methodology for Contract Cities Report
	15. - Council Member Reports of Events and Activities Attended ~ AB1234

